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ESTABLISHED IN 1975,

DX 1S A MARKET LEADER

IN THE DELIVERY OF MAIL,
PARCELS, PALLETS AND
FREIGHT VIA OUR UK-WIDE
COLLECTION AND DELIVERY

NETWORKS.

OUR MISSION

Collect it, sort it, trunk it,
deliver it, prove it, bill it.

Our mission is to make every
conceivable effort to get our
customers’ deliveries to their
final destination in accordance
with the promisad service level
and with the greatest of care. 50
what we are really saying is "If
you want to be sure it'll get there
on time, every time, we are DX

- Delivered Exactly”.

CONTENTS

OUR APPROACH

DX’s approach is straight-forward
and no nonsense. We seek to
provide an excellent service at
great value to our customers.
Qur goal is to deliver exactly to
our customers’ requirements,
whether via a next-day,
scheduled or tracked, secure
service and provide assurance
through procf of delivery,

OUR PEOPLE

Key to what we do at DX is

our people. We are incredibly
proud of the dedicated team

we have built. We look to be fair
and straight in all of our dealings
with shareholders, customers and
suppliers and of course between
ourselves, striving to get better at
what we do each and every day.
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Highlights
FINANGIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

£329.5m

(2019 L322 5m)

Reported PBT

£(1.35)m

2012 £01/7m)

Reported LPS

0.3)p

(2013 (0.4)p}

EBITDA'

£4.4m

(2019 £3 3m)

Adjusted EPS’

0.2p

(2019 (0 2)p)

Adjusted PBT!

£1.8m

(2019 £(0 2)m)

Net Cash"?

£12.5m

(2012 £1.3m net debty

Cash Inflow from
Operating Actlvities

£16.9m

(2019 £3 2m)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

> Return to adjusted pre-tax profit.
Focus on rebulding profitability through velume
growth and margin expansion.

> DX maintained operations throughout the lockdown
period which demanstrated the restience cf our
business model.

> Volumes have returned and are now exceeding levels
expected pre-lockdown

> DX Express launched new 'Expected Time of Arrival’
technology featuring two-hour delivery window and
in-flight changes.

> DX Freight returned to EBITDA profitability in second

half of the financial year.

Embarked on £10 million investment programme to
upgrade IT systems, invest In new service centres
and upgrade existing ones and improve productivity
and efficiency through new cperational parcel
handling systems.

Seenctes 3ard 33 o tne Firancial Staterrerts and the Firancial Review
for details of alternative perforrance measures (CAFMs") used. includirg
recorciliations of APMs o FRS reocrted measures

Tne cask balance includes deferred naymerts of £10 4 milhion thereby
underbying cashis £1.9 millior (2019 ret deot £1 3 nithor)
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At a Glance

CONTINUING
TOBUILDON
SUCGCESS

WHO WE ARE

DX is a market leading provider of
a wide range of delivery services,
including parcel freight, secure,
courier and logistics services.

OUR DIVISIONS

2

DX FREIGHT

Specialists in the collection
and delivery of larger and
heavier items, including
those with irregular
dimensicns and weight
CIDW™), to business and
residential addresses
nationwide.

Read mcre on page 16.

FREIGHT
® 1-Man
® Z-Man & Logist cs

WHAT WE DO

DX provides a wide range of specialist
delivery services to both business and

resicential addresses across the UK and
lreland. The Group operates through two
divisions, DX Freight and DX Express.

Revenue

£329.3m

DX (Group) plc Annua Report and Accounis 2020

DX EXPRESS

Specialists in the collection
and express delivery of
time sensitive, mission
critical and high

value items for B2B

and B2C customers.

Read more on page 18.

EXPRESS
® Seoure Cowrer
@ Tocument Fxnange



DX KEY LOCATIONS

Locations in the UK and Ireland

DX Fregh:
DX Express
Ca-located
Hub

DX IN NUMBERS

100 million

lterns delivered every year

/7

Depots and service centres
across the UK and Ireland

2,600

Daly delivery and collection routes

3,600

Employees

DX (Group) plec Annua’ Report and Accounis 2020
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Chairman’s Statement

REBUILDING

PROFITABILITY

I am pleased to report that DX made excellent
progress in its second full year of turnaround,
despite the significant challenges of the
coronavirds pandemic that emerged in

the second half of our financial year.

Introduction

The Group's return to adjusted pre-tax
profit cadpusted for amortisation of acguired
intangizles and share-based payments
charge) at a time of cnisis s all the more
pleasing and reflects on the high degree
of commitment and effort “rom our teams
across the business

We have now established vary sahd
foundations from which to move ‘orwards.
Qur focus in the next phase of the Group's
development s on rebullding prafitabilivy.
This wall be based on volume growth and
margin expansion. supported by continuing
ef“iciency and productivity improvements.

Financial Results

Results for the period ended 27 June
2020 are on a comparative I1AS 17 basis
unless stated otherwise.

Despite the impact of the coronavirus,

DX returned to profitabiity, delivering
£1.8 mullion of adjusted pre-tax profit
(2019 loss of £0 2 milkion), its first “ull year
adjusted pre-tax profit since the turnarounag
began at the end of 2017 This was
generated ¢n revenue that was up 2%
year-on-year to £329 3 million (2019

£322 5 milhion) Operating cash ‘low was
very strong at £16 2@ rmillion (2019 £3 2
meihony supported by £10 4 mulhion of
agreed payment deferrals (mainly VAT),
Inresponse to the coronavirus Crisis
Notwithstand:ing these de‘erred payments,
the underlying cash performance was
betrer than expected. resulting 1n net cash
at 27 Jurie 2020 of £12.3 milhon (2019 net
debit o £1.3 mdhon) This leaves the Graup
ina financially sound position, with 3 strong
level of hquidity and signiicant headroom
within its invoice discounting facility,

Coronavirus Crisis

The coronavirus and subsequent
government measures to contam its spread.
including a nationwide lockdown’ at the end
of March, tested the resilience andg Flexibility
of our business, As an essential service

provicler OX mantained its opgrations at all
o its depots and service centres. At the
same hime, the safety and welfare o our
5ta“f. partners and customers were our
tap priority. and protective measures
were put in place as rapidiy as possible

The response of our teams to the dramatic
change in trading conditians was
tremendous, and we were able to react
swi‘tly with great flaxibihty and resilience.
Overall delivery volumes initially fell by
around a thurd and there was a shift in
demand 1o B2C services We acted quickly
to reallocate drivers and vehicles to busier
activities and routes, and reduced the use
of subcontractors to ensure that our own
resources were fully utihsed Evensg, a
number of employees were furloughed

as we made use of the Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. We
recognise the iImportance to the economy
and to our Group of this support. The vast
maority of the ‘urlaughed employees
have now returned to work

Since Easter, volurmes have steadily
recovered and they are now above the
levels we had anticipated before the
lockdown. This strong rebound was helped
by remarning “ully operatronal throughout
the period and cantinuing to provide
customers with high levels of service.

Performance Overview

The improving performance o DX Freight
has been a key cormnponent In restonng the
Group to adjusted pre-tax profits. tam
pleased to highlight the strong progress
that was made in thes divisian over the year
Revenue improved by 7% to £169 O million
(2019, £158 & million). and the EBITDA loss
for the year was reduced by 85% 1o

E1.2 milhon (2019 loss of £78 million) Thus
substantial advancernent was rmainly driven
by the expansion and improvements in
productivity of gur 1-Man seryvice, and the
division achieved EBITDA profitability of
£O 7 mulban in the second ha'f of the year
(IH 2020 loss of £1.9 milicn)
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As expected. results from DX Express
were aected by the cessation of the
HMPO contract during the year, and
revenue was down 2% at £160.3 million
(2019 £163.9 milhon), with EBITDA at
E23.3 million {2019 £26.9 million)
Adjusting for the HMPO contract, revenue
was flat year-on-year desoite the impact
of the coronavirus In the sumrner, we
went live with our new Estimated Time of
Arrval ("ETA™) capability, which provides
the end-customer with a two-hour
delivery window and the ability to
re-schedule deliveries This investment in
ETA brings the dwision up to the mark in
terms of the technology that this market
dernands and will underpin growth as
we target the significant cpportunities
avallable for a high quality service in the
market Tor small parcels

Investment

During the financial year. we announced
the commencement of a £10 milion capital
Investment programme over two years to
strengthen our 1T systems, expand the
network and deliver operational equiprnent
to handle the mncreasing volumes and
improve efficency Spending in the perod
to 27 June 2020 amounted to £3 4 million
(2019 £3.5 rmithion), with an additional

£15 milhon of our planned expenditure
deferred a®ter the onset of the coronavirus
crisis However, we remain on track to
complete our £10 millon programme and
ta invest the remaiming sums during the
current “inancial year

Dividend Policy

We are making good progress with
restaring DX to langer term sustaimable
proat and cash generation, and having
returned the Group to profitabibty the
Board will be reviewing the dwvidend policy
again Our objective s to return to the
aividend list as soon as st 1s appropr ate
“ar us to do so and we will keep the
reinstaternent of dividends under

close review



The Board

MNow that the Group has successfully
completed the Sirst phase o 1ts
turnaround and 1s on a very firm ‘ooting
with clear growth prospects ahead, lam
confident that | can now relinquish my role
as Executive Charrman and continue as
Non-executive Chairman. This change 1s
planned to take e*“ect at the Group's
forthcorming Annual General Meeting,

| look forward to continuing to work closely
with the Board and the Executive team in
supporting the Group 1n its next phase of
developrnent as we rebuild profitabibity.

Qur People

Qur employees have shown significant
commitment to our customers and to the
business over the course of the year, and In
particular in the months since the pandermic,
The Board 1s hugely grateful, and on behal*
of the Directors | would ke to pay tribute
to the remarkable people we have at DX
and their response to the challenges
created by the coranavirus cutbreak.

Outlook and Opportunities

The overall parcels market for both DX
Express and DX Freight continues to grow
strongly and we see the opportunity for the
Group to increase volurnas armbtiously and
to grow the EBITDA margin significantly
over the next three to five years. By
utilising the existing capacity across our
two networks and “urther scaling up this
capacity. we arein a position to drive
improvements in efficiency and productivity
and further expand our margins

Trading in the first months of the new
financial year 1s ahead o* the same penad
last year and we have a healthy pipeiine of
new business cpportunities, We believe
that DX 15 well-positioned {o exploit these
market cpportunities and expect to make
good progress over the year, in line with
our targets

Ronald Series
Executive Chairman

OUR INVESTMENT CASE

Highly experienced
management team with
proven track record
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Our Customer Proposition

RELIABILITY, QUALITY
AND VALUE

We are experts in the next-day delivery of goods
that are time-sensitive, mission-critical, vatuable, or
classed as irregular dimension and weight ("IDW").

We handle most sizes of fraight from Each customer typically has different
small documents to bulky white goods, requirements, and we have the abihty
and deliver to business and residential 1o be flexible and adaptable in order to
addresses across the UK and Ireland. ensure that items are 'Delivered Exactly’
Qur customers cover a wide range of Every customer can depend on our
industry sectars, including legal, financial  lang-standing commitment 15 relability.
and governmental, optical medical and qualty and value We understand that
pharmaceutical, as well as automotive In meeting ocur commitments, we are
and retail enabhng our customers to Mmeet theirs

In Delivering Exactly, we aim to provide:

GREAT SERVICE INDUSTRY-LEADING SECURITY

We strive to aaliver every item first time, every time with We ook after customers parcels as If they wers our own,
the greatest of care. Qur focus on high levels of first-time giving aur customers confidence that therr parcels will
delivery ensures that our customers receive market- arrive safely and securely, We have an industry-leading
leading service for the'r mail, packets, parcels and pallets vetting process, giving our customers additioral

We aim to go out of our way to provide customers with securnty reassurance

dedicated and responsive suonort. giving them total
peace of mind

6 DX {Group) plc Annua Repor: and Accoun.s 2020



Heritage Trading Accounts

45 years 21k

CUSTOMER CHOICE

We offer a wide range of services delivering to both
consumers and businesses, built to meet the needs of our
customers. Whatever our customers’ consignment shape
or size whether 1t 1s a small letter, a large item reguinng

a 2-Man delivery, or a pallet of motor parts, we have the
solutions to meet custorners’ demands

Itemns delivered

100m

‘THE EXTRA MILE’

We pride ourselves in going 'the extra mile” with our
locahsed customer service rather than distant central
call centres. This differentiator enables us to develop
strong trusted relationships with customers

We are continuously looking for ways to improve our
customer proposition and, over the year. have been
pleased to see our Trustpilot rating move to ‘Great’
It1s a rating we aim to keep ar beat.

DX (Group) ple Annua Repor: and Accounts 2020
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review

FIRST PHASE OF

TURNAROUND

COMPLETE

It has been another year
of substantial progress.

This has been built on the structural

and cultural changes we put in place over
the past two vears, which centred on
devolving respansibility and accountability
to depots and service centres, and
establishing more disciplined commercial
processes. Those changes have helped to
make us operationally and commercially
much stronger. underpinning the year's
performance.

Despite the impact of the coronavirus
crisis in the second half of the year,

we have been able to continue with new
rmittatives and investmertts The further
impravements we have made over

the year rmeans that our customer
proposition 15 now more compelling

We have maintaned consistently high
service levels, introduced new Estimated
Time of Arrival ("ETA™) capabiities and
with our strong portfolio of services,

we can flex our offering to match our
customers' requiremeants,

The business I1s much more resilent as
we continug to Increase the number of
SME customers we serve and reduce
our rehance on any single custaomer or
sector of the market

We are growing i confidence and having
delivered an adjusted profit for the vear.
we now bring our focus to growing
revenue and expanding margins in the
next phase of the turnaround

Coronavirus Response

The impact of the UK lockdown was
imtialy significant, with revenue falling
by around a third in g very short pericd
of time The swift and decis-ve action
fromm teams across the business meant
we quickly made focations safe to
operate under the legal frameworks and
guidance provided by the Government

We undertook nisk assessments of

those processes that were impacted and
rapidly developed safe delivery protocols
and implermented safe methods of
working in both our warehouse and
office environments, enabling us to
remain operational

With the inimial fall in demand we

faced challenges to flex the cost base.
We switched resources to busier areas
of the business, whera we saw an uptick
n demand for B2C delivery services.

In addition, we made use of the
Govarnment's Coronavirus Job Retention
Secheme ("CJIRS" )y and furloughed
approximately 25% of our employees,
Jobs have been protected by the CJRS
and affected employees returned to the
business between late April and August
in e wath recovering volumes, and the
vast majority are now kack working in
the business The steady recovery meant
that we were able to trade profitalsly
through the lockdown penod. and by
aatly summer, overall volumes were
back to pre-coronavirus levels, led by
DX Freight and followed by DX Express
Volumes have since exceeded those
expected pre-lockdown

As well as our operational response to
tne corondgvirds we dlso took steps to
protect and preserve our Cash resources.
We made use of the Government's VAT
payment deferral scheme, which deferred
around £8 4 milhon of payments. We also
agreed a three month payment holiday
totalhng £2 O millon with certain
supphers Finally, the senior managers
and Directors across the Group sacrificed
20% of ther salary for a short period
which Pelped support the business
through this turbulent time

The coronavirus has affected us all but
some more tnan others and we pay
nbute ta those in the DX family who
were badly affected

8 DX (Group) ple Annua’ Report and Accounts 2020

Divisional Review

DX Freight takes a big

stride forward

DX Freight delivered another substantial
improvernent in jts performance with
revenue increasing by 7% to £169.0 million
(2019: £158.6 million) and EB'TDA losses
reducing significantly to £1.2 milhon
(2019 loss of £78 million, 2018, loss of
£14 2 milhon), The strong revenue grawth
was driven In particular by the expansicn
of the civisian’s 1-Man service and the
increase In EBITDA was from improving
performance acress the division DX
Freight was profitable through the
second half of the year, and reported
ERITDA of £0 7 millhon for this perod,
which was a remarkable performance
given the impact of the lockdown

In the second half, we extended the
division's network, opening a new depot
at Ipswich, We also established a unit to
assist with the identification and return
to customers of freight that has lost its
lapels or delivery instructions, This has
helped to reduce the cost of claims and
Improves custormer service. We also
mvestad i basic mecharmsation at the
Central Hub and at regionsal sortation
hubs, which has iIncreased the network’s
capacity and throughput of parcel freight
and improved the efficiency of the
sortation process We will continue to
mvest in operational systems to underpin
cur ambitious revenue and margin
targets for thus division

The market for parcel freight s expanding
and our strategy for DX Freight 1s to
grow market share and Improve margins
through increased efficiercy and
produchyity As add.honal volumes do not
require a commensurate rse in fixed costs
tnere 15 a relatively hngh cperational
gearing effect that boosts margins
Margin expans on wilt be further achieved
by extending the network of depots



This has several beneficial effects it
reduces stermn miles; improves our ability
o sell new business into the local area;
enhances service levels by beng closer
to our customers: and Increases vehicle
productivity by enabling double delivery
runs on certain routes.

The market for freight of Irregular
Dimensions and Weight ("IDW ) is
currently dominated by a smalt number
of players This is because the need

to provide national coverage together
with the increasing regulatory demands
create relatively hhgh barriers to entry
into this market. We believe that there s
scope for the division to sigmficantly
increase its market share and have
invested In a very capable sales force to
deliver new business. We have existing
capacity, which s scalable by expanding
the number of depots in the network and
by improving efficiencies, partly through
basic mechanisation

We recently opened two new depots at
Westbury and Oxford and plan to open a
depot in Burnley in the coming weeks. A
further seven new depots are scheculed
to be opened over the next three years.
The coronavirus pandemic has also
stimulated dermand for the division’s
Z2-Man and Logistics service and we have
recently appointed a new Sales Director
to address the opportunities,

DX Express exciting new

delivery capabilities

The division's performance was impacted
by the planned completion of the contract
with HMPQG, as well as by the coronavirus
crsis in the second half. As a result.
revenue decreased to £160 3 milhon
(2019: £163.2 million), and EBITDA reduced
to £23. 3 milhon (2019; £26 @ million).
With the exit from the HMPO contract
completed in the second half, we have
refocused our capacity on the expansion

of our Secure Courler service within

the growing parcels market. We have
performed well, filling around 50% of
avallable capacity following the contract's
cessation. and the pipeline of opportunities
for Secure Courer 15 significant

Anomportant milestone completed in the
second hatf was the launch of the division’s
ETA capability. This enables a 2-hour
delivery window, 'In-flight’ re-scheduling
options and keeps customers informed
of the progress of their delivery This new
technology sigrnificantly strengthens the
division's market proposition and has
opened up opportunities

| am pleased to report that since March
our Secure Courier service has been
supporting the nationat coronavirus
effort by handling medical specimens
and collecting COVID-19 testing kits.

Our strategy for DX Express is to
develop into a leading parcel delivery
service for SMEs and large national
customers that value a high-guality.
next-day service Embracing a culture
of accountabiiity and responsibility,

our service centres are able to provide
customers with a service thatis typically
more responsive and flexble and which
feels more perscnal. Although the
parcels market is very competitive, it Is
seaing strong expansion from increased
on-line purchasing and we are confident
N our ability to develop the division's
presence in this area

We are currently planning to expand

the network with a new service centre In
Glasgow, and, as with DX Freight. efficient
utihsation of capacity will help to drive
margin expansion over the langer term.

Divisions Supported

by Central Teams

Central overheads for the year increased
to £17.7 milhon (2019 £15.8 miflion).

The year-on-year rise was from planned
spending on additional IT resource to
refresh and renew the Group's IT systems
and infrastructure. Technology s key o
supporting our grawth intiatives and we
expect central overheads to remain at
this level as we continue to mvest In
systemns to increase efficiency. [ am
pleased to report that we are already
benefitting from improved data
management and reporting, and expect
further improvements as our technology
upgrade programme continues

Summary

Despite all the challenges, it has been
another year of significant progress
and we are In a position to buld upon
the hard work of the last three years
and the sound foundations we have
created. We are excited by the market
opportunities and look forward to
reporting on further progress

| would like to finish by thanking everyone
for their hard work and comnmmtment

over the past year | am proud of our
achievernents and am looking forward to
our next steps ahead In the coming year

Lloyd Dunn
Chief Executive Cfficer
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Business Model

DX is a leading provider of a wide range of
delivery solutions, covering both businass
and residential addresses throughout the
UK and lreland.

The Group focuses strongly

on customer service and WHAT WE D0

flexibility and is able to cater

for a wide cross-section of DX FREIGHT

customer requirements through

its two diViSiOﬂS, DX Freight > 1-Man: DX 1-Man has the capability to move all types of freight,
and DX EXDFGSS. from document satchels and parcels to IDW items, including

lengths up to six metres Deliveries are primarily business-to-
business and next-day. European and International delivery
DX Freight specialises in the delivery of irregular can also be accommodated
dimension and weight ("1DW™) freight These items
typically reguire a greater degree of physical
handhng because of their shape or weight and are
rnot generally compatible with automated sortation
systerns Alongside this the division also provides
a Z2-Man delivery service and a Logistics service
These services are supported by a national network
of depots, sortation hubs and trunking vehicles

> 2-Man & Logistles: 2-Man services are mainly focused on delivery
of high-value, larger and heavier products to residential addrasses
A two-hour delivery window 1s offered together wiath delivery to
the consumer’s room of choice Logistics provides a complete
range of supply chain solutions for most market sectors
Warehouse and transport soluttons include dedicated own-fleet
rmanagement across all vehicle types. mechanical handling
delvery, storage and customer order preparation

DX Express specialises in the ovarnight, secure,
exprass delivery by courer of time-sensitive,
mission-critical or high-value iterns for B2B and
BZC customers. The division operates a nationwide
network of service centres. scrtation hubs and
trunking vehicles

Read more on page 16.

OX EXPRESS

> Secure Courier: offers a highly secure, next-day B2B and
B2C delivery solution for mail, packets and small parcels
The operation serves a range of sectors including finance,
pharmaceuticals, optical and online

> Document Exchange: is a private, member-to-member
next-day, pre-9am mail and parcels network serv:ng members
withun the legal. financial and public sectors

> Mall: a cost-effective second-class mail service, which
moves pestcode-addressed mail from customers through
the DX network to ‘final mile’ delivery by Royal Mail.

Read mare on page 18.
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OUR RESOURCES

> People: the Group has strength
in depth, with a highly skilled
managemeant team, led by a
Board with significant industry
experience All employees are
thoroughly vetted to maintain
high levels of secunty.

> Networks: DX provides national
coverage through its 77 hubs,
depots and services centres,
and plans to further expand our
networks over the next five years.

> Technology: significant
investment has been rade in
the Company’s technology in
recent years, in particular in the
Group's parcel tracking systems
and handheld devices. DX has
developed its own technology,
allowing It to offer custemers
the highest levels of service

> Fleet: the Group operates a
fleet of aver 700 vehicles, which
is one of the most modern in the
industry. These vehicles meet
the strictest environmental and
safety standards of their class.

> Suppliers: the delivery networks
are supported by committed,
appropriately security-cleared
and experienced subcontractors

> FlInancial strength: over the last
three vears, DX has improved 1ts
financial performance and
strengthened financial systems.
The Company now has a robust
financial platform for the next
phase of its development

All underpinned by strong corporate governance and risk management procedures.

HOW WE DO IT

> Commercial discipline: strong
commercial discipline 1s apphed
to overy quote to ensure the price
is right for the nature of the
freight to be delivered.

> Local customer service: every
customer has alocal point of
contact, making DX's service
distinctive

> Rellable, next-day service:
high standards are set to ensure
the Group delivers a reliable,
first-time, next-day service.

> ‘Can-do’ culture: a 'can-do’
attitude underpins DX's
apperoach and ensures that
customers feel that DX people
will go 'the extra mile’ for them,

> High-quality information:
improved information
management systems help to
ensure that tirmely and insightful
decisions are made when
managing operations and
customer service,

> Compelling proposition: the
Group's ability to handle a
wide-variety of delivery options
and to flex its service to match
customer requirernents using
modern technology makeas for
a compelling propoasifion,

WHAT WE AIM TO DELIVER

> A motivated workforce

> Satisfied customers

> An improving market position

> A growth buslness with
expanding margins

> Long-term sustalnable profit
and cash generation

> Attractive returns to
shareholders, which Includes
a progressive dividend policy
at an appropriate point in
the future

Recad more on pages 14, 15 and 33 1o 35.
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Strategic Objectives

As we focus on growth and margin expansion, and with the right
organisational structure now in place we have revised the strategic
objectives to drive the next phase of growth and to widen margins across
the business. The goal remains the same: to move the business back to
long-term sustainable profit and positive cash generation.

Sirategc obective Deta led ob,ectives

CONTINUBLLY DEVELOPGRPAGITY a7 e e monase et sy e
WITHIN AN OPTIMAL NETWORK

IMPRDVE MARGINS Acnnss BBTH > DX Freight EBITDA margin to increase 1o between 8-10%.

> DX Express to maintain EBITDA margins at »10%.
Dx FREIGHT AND Dx EXPRESS > Target of achieving Group EBITDA margin after overheads of

5-8% within five years

EMBED LUCAL RESPUNSIBILITY AND > Local General Managers supported by Sales and Operations

Managers

ADBUUNTAB“.ITY IN THE DNA UF ﬂx > Link reward to performance

Local customer service relationships

v

Recruwit additional sales rescurces

INVEST IN SALES AND COMMERCIAL
CAPABILITIES

Dwisional commercial teamns to approve all new busingss.

Increase B2B mix in DX Freight

vV Y

Leverage strong portfolio of services ta provide customers

with flexible service to match their requirements Continued
development of customer confidence in. and recogmition of,
the DX brand.

Improve commercial and sales tools.

INVEST IN [T SYSTEMS AND NETWORK
EQUIPMENT IMPROVEMENTS

Improve guality of management information
Improve utilisation of ocur data.
Develop functionality of operational systems

VoWV VW

Renew IT infrastructure

EXTEND THE FUDTPRINT UF THE > Develop network capacity and proguctivity to open up market

opporturites and reduce stern mileage

BUS|NESS THHUUGH NEW DEPUTS AND > Estabbsh regional sortation hubs to improve produchivity
SERVICE CENTRES

IMPRDVE UPERATIUNAI_ EFF'BIENBY : Mave balance of fleet 1n DX Fraight to 7.5 tonne vahiclas

Improve hub. trunking and delivery productivity

» Develop network capacity at OX Express through increased
use of transit vans
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Progress dur'ng 2020

Qbleciives lor 2021

Delivery and hub productivity further improved, which has driven
improved profitability.

> MNew target for Fy21. > Appomnt new Trunking Director. Invest in basic
mecharisation in Central Hub and regional
sortation hubs to drive efficiencies. Identify
potential site for new 2-Man hub Open four
new depots and continue to pragress ionger-
term target sites
DX Freight reduced loss by 85% 1n FY20 and was profitabie in the > Further contribution towards longer-term
second half, achieving an EBITDA margin of 1 2% sustainable profitability through growth in
DX Express EBITDA margin was 14 5% margins.
Group EBITDA marg:n was | 3%.
Continued to strengthen management team through the > Continue to strengthen and develop
appontment of new General Managers and Regional Directors. management team, alming for arounc 100
28 managers' rewards linked to achievement of local performance managers to succeed in achieving focal
targets. performance targets
Estimated Time of Arrival functiorality launched as planned at > Address potential contractual and commercial
DX Express, changes following end of transitional period
Business mix of B2B reduced in DX Freight as a consequence of under Brexit
coronavirus but B2B slowing reverting back to pre-lockdown levels > Further development of the Group's
Retained B2C volume at commercially sensible rates commercial systems
New business gquotes produced and reviewed in a prompt and
timely manner,
Strong sales growth, particularly DX 1-Man at DX Freight
New Sales Director appointed at DX Express.
£1.2 millon invested in 1T infrastructure and systems, > Planned £3 million of investment in IT systems
New handhetd devices introduced in DX Express, including new Digital Document Exchange.
customer website and new handheld devices
Finance system upgraded and new Personnel system .
for depot and service centres
implernented. 09 d for furth
= . 1] Kk nvestment
Further £0 9 milion invested in operational improvements ) millian earmarked for further inve
in the network
including in new cages and basic sorting mechanisation
DX Freight opened new depot at Ipswich and the depot at > New DX Freight depots in Burnley, Westbury
Newport relocated to new facility and Oxford.
£1.2 milhon invested in new sites and improvements to the existing > New DX Express service centre planned in
network Glasgow
DX Express relocated to new service centre in Ipswich, > Major upgrades to DX Freight depots at
Hoddesdon, Glasgow and Manchester,
93 new delivery and trunking vehicles delivered during the year > Further investment in basic sorting
Investment into basic mechanisation at sorting hubs within DX mechanisation to further improve levels of
Freight productivity and customer service.
Further changes to hub and trunking has maintained levels of > Investmeant in cages anc stillages to support
customer service as the business has expanded. growth of the business
> Repurpose secure sortation bureau following

completion of HMPO contract

DX (Group) plc Annua Report and Accouants 2020
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board has overall responsibility for DX's approach to risk
management and its system of internal controls to safeguard
the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests.

The risk management process and systerns of internal controls are designed to 1dentify the main risks that the Group faces in
deliverng its strategy. and ensure that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to minimise these risks to the Group
The Group maintains a risk management register which 1s reviewed and discussed every six months with the Operating Board
and the Audit & Risk Committee

The Board has identified the following principal risks and uncertainties to the Group's successful performance and delwery
of its strategy:

Risk Impact Mitigation

Market Risk

LETTER AND PARCEL The market for letters is 1n structural decline which DX seeks to win business in new sectors

In particular affects the DX Exchange service If the and develop new services, recognising
VOLUMES IN THE UK decline of letter volurmes in the UK s at a faster rate  the general move to digital and electronic

than forecast or the growth in parcel volumes s lower alternatives

than DX forecasts for DX fails to mamtam or increase its

share of the parcel markets in which it operates}, there

may be a material adverse effect on DX's operations

and future financial condition Risks from a hard Brexit

or a pandemic relate to the potential impact on our

customers' business and general business confidence,

Price Risk

THE PARGEL MAHKET IN The parcels market I1s highly competitive and DX provides high levels of customer

DX may be adversely affected by aggressive service at prices that offer customers

WchH Dx UPERATES IS oricing strategies, best value It also seeks to maintain

strong relationships with major customers

HIGHI.V CUMPETITIVE and develop new service attributes, such

as real-tme delivery vehicle tracking. in
response to customer needs

Operational Risk

IT SYSTEMS ABE Any material failure in DX's IT applications, systerns, DX has a business continuity plan in the
certain key supphrers and infrastructure may lead to event of IT systems failure and ongoimng
GRITIGAL Tu Dx’s operational and systemns disruptions, with an adverse nvestrment 1s being made to continuously

effect on DX's operations financial condition and enhance its capalhity. Further protecthions
BUS'NESS UPEHATlﬂNS future prospects While 1ts software 1s being updated. are in place (o protect DX's systems
DX's operational effectiveness could be impaired if its against attacks. These protections are
existing bespoke software faled to alevel acceptable to government
departments. Prior to new systems going
Ive, DX conducts significant testing in
non-live environments

_ DX Expre;ss collects, sarts and delivers a range of All DX Express staff are fully vetted All
CUNFIDENTIAL AND confidential and sensitive letters and parcels for a parcels processed through our secure
SENSITIVE ITEMS variety of customers, including government network are tracked from end to end,

departmerts, local authornities and exarmination boards
if confidential consignments were to be misplaced the
reputation and brand of DX may be agversely affected
If @ high-profile maident of this nature arose. exising
oF potential custormers may be unw Ing to use DX
for the delivery of confidential ar sensitive tems
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Operational Risk continued

DRIVER CERTIFICATE
OF PROFESSIONAL
COMPETENCE (“CPC™)

The DX network requires the use of 7.5 tonne
vehicles which must be driven by CPC-qualified
drivers. A shortage of such drivers would impact
the ability of DX to operate its network and this
could have a material adverse effect on DX's results
of cperations, financial condition and prospects

DX has resources specifically focused on
recruiting sutably qualified drivers and
the current level of vacancies s not
impeding the business’ ability to operate,

OELIVERY OF
NEW BUSINESS

Having successfully implemented its turnaround
strategy. DX 1s aiming to secure significant new
business to utihse capacity N its networks in order to
grow revenue and margins to heip return the Group
to sustainable profitability. If core parts of this plan
are not successfully delivered it would put a strain
on DX's financing arrangements, which could result
in hguidhty risk and the need to raise additional funds

DX has invested in an experienced
management and operational team

to dehver the strategy. has robust
measures in place to track the day-to-day
performance of the business and reports
regularly aganst key initiatives,

A CORONAVIRUS SECOND
WAVE AND/OR ANOTHER
PANDEMIC

DX adapted very guickly to the challenges of
coronavirus and the Government's lockdown, but
both the risk to employees and others from a
pandermic and the canstrammts introduced by any
form of lockdown or restriction on business activities
needs to be planned for, monitored and reacted to
as this nisk impacts on other risk areas.

DX has learned from the experience of

the coronavirus pandemic how to flex its
operationat capacity to meet increased
demand in certain areas and reduced
dermand elsewhere as well as how to rmanage
health and safety effectively {as noted
elsewhere in this risk management summary).

Compliance Risk

STANDARDS AND
REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Dx holds several standards and regulatory
accreditations mcluding 150 27001 iInformation
Security Management and Cyber Essentials Plus,
Maintenance of these standards is required te be
able to provide services to public sector bodies
and other key markets If DX were to lose these
accreditations it would put major contracts at risk
and jeopardise existing and future revenues

Fleet compliance is central to meeting our operator
"0y hicence obhgations, which allows DX to cperate
its delivery and trunking fleet Loss of O licences
would significantly impact DX's ability to operate

The safety of our employees, agency labour and
suppliers 15 of pararmount importance, Compliance
with regulations and development of a positive
health and safety culture 1s key to achieving this
There is a risk of serious imjury or fatality if safe
practices are not adhered to

DX trains staff in accordance with these
standards and performs internal
assessments to ensure the required
processes and standards are maintained.
DX 15 also subject to external audits of our
compliance with these standards

Regular maintenance and nspection of
vehicles and audit of camphance with
regulations.

Regular risk reviews of operations. a
dedicated team of safety professionals, and
targeted traiming seeks to engage employees
to work safely and avoid injury We have
also invested In appropriate measures to
protect our employees to ensure they are
able to operate safely and in ine with
Government gurdance and regulations

In the hight of the coronavirus pandemic,

By order of the Board

& oo

Ronald Series
Executive Chairman
16 September 2020
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Operational Review

DX FREIGHT

SPECIALISTS IN PARCEL FREIGHT
The improved performance of DX Freight continued to progress
very well over the financial year, building on last year's advances,
despite the coronavirus crisis, which impacted the second half.

Revenue increased by 7% to £168 O million
(2019: £158 6 milkon} helped by new
business acauisition, and the EBITDA loss
reduced ta £1 2 milhon (2019: £7.8 millicn
lossy, Qur 1-Man caonsignment volumes
arew by 14% year-on-year, with DX Freight
delivering approximately 29 million items
over the year. The Logistics service
performed strongly driven by the
expansion of key customers, and increased
revenye through the coronavirds lockdown

The division grew across a number

of sectors, including retail, bulding &
construction, horme furnishings, electrical
wholesale, and automotive Anaimportant
differentiator 1s our localised Customer
Service Teams, who engage directly

with customers and are readily avallable
to respond rapidly to customer needs,
Currently, DX Freight has in the region of
4.000 trading accounts, encompassing
both B2B and B2C markets

We continued with growth initiatives
under aur turnaround plan, including

the ongoing development of the nightly
line-haul operation. As part of its
developrment we intraduced regional
hulss 1in key geographical locations in
Manchester. Heathrow, Northamptor and
Bristol This has increased capacity across
the whole network. whilst maintaining
manageable volumes at our Central Hub
in Willenhall

We also continued our investrment
programme in basic mechanisation
and equiprnent, completing £1.4 million
of capital spending over the yvear
Approxmately £0.5 million of this

was spent on a bespoke automated
parce| sortation system and structural
improvements to the Central Pub.

Alongside this, we also installed new
mechanised handling sclutions at the
regional hubs in Manchester and
Northampton, and made a further major
Irvestment in new cages and shillages at
depots across the network.,

Qur fleet replacement programme
continued, and we have introduced
new livery, incorporating our slegan,
“Delivered Exactly - Parcel & Freight
Solutions” and blue ribbon design
DX Fraight now has one of the maost
modern vehicle fleets in the industry

Following prior investment in T
infrastructure, we were able to upgrade
handheld devices, which deliver
improved real-time ‘proof of delivery’
capture, Our in-house 1T team developed
the associated application software,
ncluding driver assistance modules,
which were installed on all devices
across the network

We have expanded the divisian’s capacity.
opening a new depot in ipswich In
January 2020, relocating the Newport
depot to larger premises and creating
additional capability at the Narthampton
depot by moving DX Express to ts own
location We also openad a new 'No I
centre in Willenhali to help return to
customers items that have lost ther
labels or detivery mstructions

We estirnate that these new depot
openings. combined with the planned
mayor £3 milhon capital investment 1in
existing depots at Thatcham, Hoddesdon
Manchester and Glasgow. will provide us
with approximately 30% of extra capacity
Over the reamainder of the 2020 calendar
year we are opening depots at Burnley,
Westbury and Oxford, and will continue to
loak for further strategically placed depots
to support the division's expansion
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29m

Increase in 1-Man
consignment volume
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CASE STUDY

FREIGHT REACHING
NEW HEIGHTS FOR
LADDER MANUFACTURER

T B Davies, based in Cardiff Ladders of any descnption can definitely
' ‘ be described as IDW (Irregular Dimension
have been manufacturing and Weight) so need a specialist carrier.

ladders for 75 years and have T B DPavies who send on average 2,500

Fr= . consmanments per month needed a
been a satisfied DX Fre;ght carrier who had the ability to transport

customer since 2018. Their without damaging their stock
roducts range from normal!

P 9 During the March 2020 COVID-19

step, loft and garden ladders lockdown T B Davies saw a spike to

to more specialist lines such as  orders receved and were also suppliers

T to the several Nightingale Hospitals built
scaffold towers and SDeCIa“St across England. All of their orders during

access ladders, designed for this critical period were delivered by
specific needs. DX Freight.

“We were experiencing poor service and damage issues
from our incumbent carrier, so moved to DX Freight,
who were offering a reliable next day service and had
a wealth of experience in dealing with ugly freight like
ours. We definitely weren’t disappointed and their
localised customer service and account management
was an added bonus.”

James Gray, Director at T B Davies
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Operational Review

DX EXPRESS

SPECIALISTS IN SECURE DELIVERY
DX Express continued to make steady progress with initiatives

te support the long-term growth of our Secure Courier service,
which is exposed to the growing parcels market.

We are pleased in particular with the
technolcgy improvements we have made
during the year. including the launch of
our two-hour Estimated Time of Arrwval
("ETA services which will open up
opportunibies for us, especially In the
B2C sector However as expected, the
planned cessation of the HMPO contract
was also a key feature of the financial
year for the division. with the winding
down process proceeding In a controlled
and orderly way The coronawvirus crisis
also adversely affected in particular our
specialist document exchange operation,
DX Exchange Customers of this service
are mainly legal and financial mstitutions,
These challenges were reflected in lower
revenue of £160 3 milion (2019, £163 9
milion) and reduced EBITDA of £23 3
million (2019; £26 9 mulhon)

Across the division's areas of operation.
Document Exchange, and Secure Courier,
we now have approximately 17000
trading accounts and during the year we
delivered approximately 71 millionaitems

A key operational milestone that we
completed in the financial year was the
roll-out of new mobile devices for

drivers Approximately 1100 new devices
went hve across the division's netwaork of
31 service centres across the UK The roil-
out of this latest technology 1s part of the
Group’s wider, ongoing transformation
and development strategy. and lays the
platform for our programme of product
launches and service enhancements for
customers gwver coming months At the
sare time 1t 1s helping to unlock further
efficiencies in the DX Express network,

The launch of our two-hour ETA service
whth pre-fl.ght and in-fllght notifications
N the summer was another impaortant
event completed by our In-house IT Team
After a rigorous test period with a small

group of customers, we commenced fuil
deployment with the wider customer base.
The new capabilities this system brings
strengthens our market praposition and
will support future new business INitiatives

As part of our response to the coronavirus
pandemic, we were pleased to be a key
partner in the Carner Consortium for
COVIDA9 test collections, Organised

by The Delvery Group, the Carrier
Consortium. brings together over 10.000
vehicles, 200 faciities and more than
16,000 peoplein a ighly co-ordinated
effort to delwer a strictly-controlled
operation, ensuring the securg
transportation of testing kits from
pIck-up to delivery at testing laboratones.
The results of the testing programme

will feed into a study conrdinatad by
lpsos MORI, in partnershup with Imperial
College Landon, for The Department of
Health and Social Care ("DHSC"Y Lo assist
inunderstanding the prevalence of the
coronavirus across England.

We cantinued with inttiatives to improve
network and operational efficiency. In
January 2020, we moved the Aberdeen
service cantre to larger premises and
similarly in May moved to a larger service
centre in Ipswich Both relocations went
very well, and the Ipswich move
represants the final prece i the gsaw
for a service cantre boundary alignrment
across the entire east coast. Over the
new financia: year, we wiil implement a
new, single-network system across our
al seryice centres, which will improve
efficiencies and benefit customers

We have started work on a digital
platform for DX Exchange and plan

ta launch this new service in the new
firancial year The new digital platform
will offer a broader range of addtignal
services for our DX Exchange membpers
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CASE STUDY

A SECURE NETWORK:
KEY FACTOR WHEN
APPOINTING DX EXPRESS

Huxloe Logistics provide entire
supply-chain solutions to helop
retailers and e-commerce
companias all over the world
grow their businesses. With a
track-record and decades of
experience, Huxloe Logistics
are the number one choice for
their clients who are looking to
streamline their logistics
operations, improve their
customer experience, while
reducing costs.

Huxloe Logistics have heen a DX Express
custorner since 2015 and unclertake
logistics and e-fulfilment for various
globa! high-end brands DX Express
deliver circa 3 milhon parcels for Huxloe
Logistics” custormers annually Due to the
many igh-end brands they wark with
and the associated prices of the goods
they ship, Huxloe are always looking to
work with the best in the carrier world,
who offer a first-class, and most
impartantly secure service.

Hoday sj6ajenys
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“When appointing any new delivery partners, we
always consider the time sensitive nature of the
deliveries and the high value of the actual goods. We
have always found DX Express to be a reliable partner
and their new two hour ETA and pre-flight and in-flight
notifications will be of interest to many of our clients.”

Paul Walker, Chief Operating Officer at Huxloe Logistics
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Key Performance Indicators

DX uses key performance indicators ("KPIs™)

to assess the development and underlying
business werformance of the Group, These KPIs
are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain
appropriate and meaningful measures of the
Group's performance.

STATUTORY MEASURES

£329.3m £(1.3)m 0.3)p

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Group EBITDA’ Adjusted PBT? Net Cash'?

(2019 £5 3y (2019 E(0.20m) (2019 ne: debr £1 3m;
DX Freight EBITDA' DX Express EBITDA’ Central Overheads
(2018 Z(/83my {2019 £26 9my (2019 L1 Em)

Cash inflow from
Operating Activitlas’

£16.9m

(2019 £32 2

1 Seercles 2srd 33 to tre Fira~cial Statererts ard toe Firaroial Review tor detalls of APMe used i-cludirg recaraihatiorns of APMs to 'FRS

reported measures

2 Trecasr oalance ircludes defarrad cayverts of E10 4 million trarecy underlying ¢asri: £]1 2 e (2019 net deot £1 3 miluom)
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Financial Review

DELIVERED

EXPECTATIONS AND
MAINTAINED HEALTHY
CASH POSITION

Statutory Results

From 1 July 2019 the Group changed its
reporting periods from a calendar basis
to a '4-5-4 weekly  basis which better
reflects its cost base and operations
These financial statements were
prepared for the period 1 July 2019 1o
27 June 2020 Future yvears will be for
either 52 weeks or occasionally 53 weeks
In order to keep the year-end date as
close as possible to 30 June.

Revenue for the peried to 27 June 2020
was £329 2 milhon (2019 £322.5 milhon)
and the loss before taxation was £13
million (2019: £1.7 milhon comparative on
|1AS 17 basis), The loss per share was 0.3p
(2019: C 4p on IAS 17 basis),

Transition to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

A key change to our financial reporting
was the transition to reporting property,
vehicles, and eguipment leases, Previously,
the costs under these operating leases
would have been expensed in the income
staternent. These assets have been
capitalised as at 1 July 2019 as nght-of-use
assets and are depreciated through the
income statement. On transition we have
also recognised a discounted lease llability,
on which interest 1s charged to the Income
statement. The impact on the income
statement has meant that EBITDA has
sigruficantly increased The depreciation
charge has also increased significantly
along with additional amounts being
charged to interest, Further details

of the transition to IFRS 16 and 1its

impact are outlined In note 33 to the
Financial Statements.

IFRS 16 1AS17 NS 17
2028 2020 2019
£m £m Em
Revenue 3293 329.3 3225
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”)’ 24.9 4.4 33
Depreciation (20.0) 1.8) 22
Amortisation of software and development costs (0.4 (0.4) (0.9)
Underlying operating profit’ 4.5 2.2 02
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 0.3 (0.3) 3
Share-based payments charge (1.2) 1.2) 1.2)
Reported profit/(loss) from operating activities 3.0 0.7 (1.3)
Finance costs 4.3 0.4) (04
(Loss)/profit before tax 13 0.3 a7
Tax (0.5) (0.5) (0.8)
Loss for the year (1.8) (0.2) (25)
Other comprehensive expense - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year .8 (0.2) (2.5)
EPS - adjusted (pence)’ wn 0.2 02
- basic {(pence) (0.2 0.0 (O 4

1 Seerotes 3 and 33 to the Finarcial Staterrerts and tne Financial Review for detalls of alterrative
porfarmance measures ( APMs ) used, including reconcihations of these AFMs to FRS reported

measures

Summary

Statutory results for the penod ended

27 June 2020 are reported on an IFRS 16
basis and the comparative 1s under [AS 17
However the results for the period ta

27 June 2020 outlined below are on an IAS
17 basis unless stated otherwise in order to
aid comparability to the results for the prior
year. Results for the 53 weeks ending 3 July
2021 will be presented on an IFRS 16 basis

Revenue of £329.3 million was 2% ahead of
the orior year, and reflects strong growth at
DX Freight of £10.4 million to £169.0 miilion
driven by expansion of its 1-Man service
despite the impact of the coronavirus This
growth was offset by a small reduction in
revenue at DX Express of £3.6 milhon to
£160.3 millon which resulted from the
expected decline of revenue from
Document Exchange subscriptions the
loss of the HMPO contract and the
impact of the coronavirus. offset «n part
by securing new business,

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation and exceptional items
("EBITDA”) for the period to 27 June
2020 was £4.4 million (2019: £2 3 million}.
The profit before tax was £0.3 million
(2019 loss before tax of £1.7 mullion)

Underlying operating profit was

£2.2 milhion (2019: £0 2 milhion) Adjusted
profit before tax was £1.8 million {2019
loss of £0.2 mullion)

Net cash at 27 June 2020 was £12.3 milhon
(2019 net debt of £1.3 million), which was
petter than market forecasts. mostly
because of deferrad VAT of £8 4 million
and the agreed deferral of other payments
totalling £2.0 milhon. Qperating cash flow
was £16.9 milhon (2019: £3.2 milllon) and
the cash cutflow from capital expenditure
was £3 2 million (20192 £3 4 mithon) 1t s
expected that the deferred payments will
be made durnng the current financial year,
resulting In the Group being modestly cash
positive at the end of this financial year
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Financial Review continued

“Reventie of £329.3 million was 2%
ahead of the prior year, and reflects
strong growth at DX Freight of
£10.4 million to £169.0 million driven by
expansion of its 1-Man service albeit held
back by the impact of the coronavirus.”

David Mulligan, Chief Financlal Officer

Revenue by Segment
A breakdown of Group revenue 15 shown below and further commentary on
each division's performance is provided in the Chairman's Staternent and the

Chief Executive Officer's Review.

Cash Flow
2020 2019
£m £m
EBITDA 4.4 33
Net change in working
capital 13.3 (0.2
Interest pand (0.4 (0.4
Tax (paid)/received (0.4 05
Net cash from cperating
activities 16.9 52

2020 519 Change

£m fm Yo

DX Express 160.3 1639 -2%

DX Freight 169.0 158.6 +7%

Revenue 3293 3225 2%

Segmental Analysis 2020

DX Express DX Freight Central Total

{Prepared under 1AS 17) £m £m £Em £m

Revanue 160.3 169.0 - 329.3
Costs before overheads (129.6) (165.3) - (294.9)
Profit/(loss) before overheads 30.7 3.7 - 34.4
Overheads (7.4) (4.9) 17.7) (30.0)
EBITDA 233 (1.2) Qaz7.7) 4.4
Depreciation and amortisation - - (2.5) (2.5)
Share-based payments charge - - (1.2) 1.2)
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 23.3 (1.2) (21.4) 0.7
Finance costs - - (0.4 (0.4)

Profit/(loss) before tax 23.3 (1.2) (21.8) 0.3
Tax (expensea)/credit ~ - 0.5) (0.5)
Profit/(loss) for the year 23.3 (1.2) (22.3) (0.2)

2019

DX =xpress DX Sre gt Central Tora

(Prepored Lrdsr AS 1y tm £m trn £rm
Revenue 1639 1586 - 3225
Costs before overheads (129 5) (B17) - (29123

Profit/(loss) before overheads 344 3N - 313
Overheads (75) 473 (15.8) (28 M

EBITDA 269 (78 (15.8) 33
Depreciation and arnortisation - - (3.4) (3.4)
Share-based payments charge - - a2 .2
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 269 (78) (20 4) a3
Finance costs - - 04 4
Profit/(loss) before tax 269 (78) (20 &) 073
Tax (expense)/credit - - (08) Q8
Profit/(loss) for the year 269 (78) (21} (25
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Cash flow from operating acbivitizs was
£16.9 million, £13 7 million better than the
prior year, This was partly as a result of
improved EBITDA, but mostly because

of deferred VAT payments under HMRC's
VAT payments deferral scheme and other
deferred payments agreed with suppliers

Working capital Increased significantly
by £13 3 million in the vear. mostly
because of the deferred payments
referred to above Other working capital
movements included an expected

£3.0 million decrease in DX Exchange
deferred income. whilst DX maintained
its excellent performance on debtor days
at 23 days (2019. 25 days)

Interest paid was similar to the previous
vear, whilst tax paid was in relation to the
Group's Insh operations There was a tax
rebate of £1.1 rmiihon in the previous year
which maore than offset the Irish tax charge



Net Assets

Net assets increased by £1.0 million,
reflecting the profit for the year excluding
the share-based payments charge.

2020 20149

£m £m

Non-current assets 43.7 430
Current assets excluding

cash 351 432

Cash 12.3 1.8

Invoice discounting facihity - 3.0

Current habilities excluding

debt (61.1) (56 2)

Non-current habilities (5.4 (50
Net assets 246 236
Net Cash/Debt

Net cash at 27 June 2020 was better than
expected at £12.3 millien (2019 net debt
of £1.3 milbon), reflecting the EBITDA for
the year, but also the significant deferred
payments referred to above

The Group'’s anly borrowing facility is a
£20.0 million invoice discounting facility
Drawings on the nvoice discounting
facility at 30 June 2020 were £l (2019:
£3.1 million)

2020 2019

£m £m

Cash and cash eguivalents  12.3 1.8
Invoice discounting facility - (310
Net cash/(debt)’ 12.3 (1.3)

1 Seanotes 3ard 33 to tne Financial Statements
ard the Financial Review (o details of
APMs usedincluding reconcihiations of these
APMs to 'FRS reported measures

Adjusted Profit and Earnings per Share
Adjusted earnings per share {on an |1AS 17 basis), which excludes amortisation of
acguired intanaibles and share-based payments charge, was O 2p (2019 loss per

share of O 2p).

S
IFRS 16 1AS17 IAS17 8
2020 2020 209 2
£m £m £m a
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 3.0 0.7 (13 E
Add back/(deduct): g
- Amortisahion of acguired intanaibles 0.3 03 03
- Share-based payments charge 1.2 1.2 1.2
- Finance costs (4.3) (0.4) (G 4)
Adjusted profit/(loss) before tax 0.2 1.8 02
Tax (0.5) (0.5) ©.8)
Adjusted (loss)/profit after tax (0.3) 1.3 1.0y
Adjusted (loss)/earnings per share (pence) 0.0 0.2 (02
Basic loss per share (pence) (0.3) 0.0 (04 o
Q
&
Capital Expenditure Dividends é
Capital expenditure for the year was In line with previous guidance, the Board 2
£2.4 million (2019: £3 5 million)y Capital will not be recommending the payment %
expenditure consisted principally of a dividend for this financial year e
of iInvestment in IT equipment and ?,
development, operational equipment and
property improvements, In particular, the  David Mulligan
Group's finance systems were upgraded Chief Financial Officer
during the year to the latest version of
the JD Edwards enterpnse software and
moved into a madern cloud-hosted
environment.
2020 219
£m fm
IT hardware and n
development costs 1.2 11 §
Property costs 1.3 14 a
. W
Operations and service o
development 0.9 10 ¥
0
Total capex 3.4 35 3
=}
n
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Corporate Responsibility

CONTINUED

PROGRESS IN OUR
CSR PROGRAMMES

Managing and Reducing

our Environmental Impact

We recognise the significant impact

that logistics companies have on the
envirenment and as a conseqguence the
Group remains committed to mirumising
our own Mmpacts and sharing our
progress ina simple and transparent way,

The Group maintains UKAS certification
to the international environmental
management standard 15014001 which
continues to underpin our approach

to setting objectives and targets for
improvement agamnst our significant
envirgnmental aspects Our certification
15 now mature, having been initially
implemented in 2016, and 1s an effective
way to benchmark our performance
consistently,

The Group mamntains an annual
environmental reporting campaign which
measuras our Scope 2 Carbon Footprint
in CO (&) - carbon dioxide eguivalent

Carbon Footprint Components

KEY

@ ruel- Commercial veh clos 89%
@ [loctr oty consumoed 6%

& Fuel - Comoay cars 4%

® G35 consumen 1%

24

We measure at Scope 2, using the GHG
Protocol as a framework, being the
boundary that we are able to directly
influence, measure and control more
effectively as this includes consumption
of fuels for our own delivery vehicles as
well as indirect emissions from our own
energy use.

It should be noted that our two operating
cnvisions use very different business
models, with our DX Freight division
utilsing predormmnantly DX vehicles and
drivers and our DX Express civision using
predorminantly self-employed courers and
subcontractors to deliver goods As a
conseguence, our Scope 2 measurements
encapsulate our own vehicles and are
therefore heavily influenced by DX
Freight’s performance Scope 3 vehicle
emissions of self-employed couners and
subcontractors for DX Express do not
form part of our formal reporting.

€O, Emisslions (Tonnes)

DX (Group) pl¢ Annua Repor: and Accounts 2020

Qur Scope 2 Carbon Footprint comprises
of errussions from customer deliveries.
company cars, electnaty use and gas
use The impact of customer deliveries
accounts for 89% of our carbon footprint

The commercial growth within the
Group's DX Fraight division and the
practical impact of increasad volume of
deliveries alongside Increased property
footprint to accammodate that volume,
has led to an overall increase In emissions
and our associated carbon footprint
Cornpared to the previous year our
absolute carbon footprint increased by
65020 tonnes, representing a 22%
increase and our intensity ratio of CO.(e)
per £1 million revenue increased by 12%,

We strive. through new technologies, to
improve efficiency. optirmisation of routes
to reduce physical mileage and driver
traiming and engagement to continue to
improve our performance.

€O, (e)/£1m Revenue



Keeping our Peopie Safe

Making sure that our colleagues, visitors
and contractors are able to go home
safely at the end of the day is of
paramount importance to us.

In this unprecedented year, the
emergence of the coronavirus pandemic
required an aglle safety response as the
Group continued to support our essential
services, The Group adapted guickly and
proactively and deptoyed a robust COVID
Secure Process to keep our colleagues
and others safe.

A CUSTOMER GENTRIC APPROACH

We recognise that our seven stakeholders
have different needs so the approach
tries to balance those needs by treating
each stakeholder as a custorner

We design systems and processes to
genuinely support stakeholder needs
In a balanced way

To read more about how this works in
practice please see our case study on
page 27.

We have a customer centric safety
rmanagament system, designed to meet
the needs of our stakeholders and be
agile encugh to adapt and change with
the business. An explanation of that
approach 1s shown below,

Whilst the averall number of minor
accidents has increased, those that are
more serious, the RIDDOR reported
accidents have reduced by 17% This
shows a maturing culture of accident
reporting and an improved risk profile.

Our Safety Academy has beenin place
now for twao years, a bespoke e-learning
platform that provides interactive traiming
for our top risks, developed and designed
to bring to life safe systems of work and
engage our colleagues in safer working
practices. The Safety Academy continues
to mature and provide a concise and
consistent message across our business
and as a conseqguence of the appreach.
led to the Group being well positionad

to maintain general safety traning and
engagement throughout the lockdown
period.

2018 z019 2020 % Change

RIDDOR accidents

42 42 35 -17
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Corporate Responsibility continued

We are commiitted to the highest
standards of road safety and hold a Fleet
Management Road-Risk Management
Seminar with audiences consisting of

the Executive Team, Regional Directors,
General Managers and Operating Centre

licence holders.

The Group's Risk Review Programme |s
our bespoka safety audit process that is
used to benchmark performance and
drive continual imgrovement

New this year was our behavioural safety
campaign, known as 'Take 5, designed to
engage colleagues to make a difference
by recognising five migh risk behaviours
far each of our top five nsks rsee our
case study opposite) By focusing on our
Top 5 we can make a real difference

Our approach to safety continues to
rmature and deliver improvements, making
the warkplace a safer place for all

Road Safety

Use of the UK road network 15 an integral
part of the Group's operations and we
therefore view driving as a key element of
our daly routine, whether it s commercial
driving, company car or grey-flaet drniving
Substantial mileage i1s coverad most days
of the week by the Group's ermployees
This presents potential risk, with driving
reportedly the maost dangerous work
actwity that most people do, and the
number of vehicles using the UK road
network (pre-tockdown) at its highest ever
leve! With the UK's roads now starting to
return to normal we have had to take into
account the risk created by the high
number of on-road foat workers, such

as maintenance workers, postal workers,
vehicle breakdown technicians, motor-
cyehsts and cyclists, whose numbers are
increasng daly due to coronavirus
concerns around public transport as well
as Government encouragement

We reviewed our Road-Risk Managerment
Palicy in Octaber 2019 This Policy
provides guidance for our drivers in
identifying and evaluating patential nsks
and implementing sclutions to reduce
any identified risk toits lowest
practicably attanable level

We are committed to the highest
standards of road safety and hold

a Fleet Management Road-Risk
Management Seminar with audiences
consisting of the Executive Team,
Regional Directors General Managers
and Operating Centre licence holders

The Serminar takes place bi-annually and
discusses fleet management, road safety,
and current and future legislation changes
We work with The Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents ("ROSPA™) to
deliver training and qualfications to ali of
our drivers In addition, we are working
closely with Logistics UK (formerly the
Fleet Transport Association) to deliver

all our Driver Certificate of Professional
Competence ("DCPC™ training across
the business

During the financial year, we took delvery
of an additional 83 new commercial
vehicles as part of our fleet replacement
programme The new vehicles are fitted
with the latest technology including
forward-facing camera systems These
have already been shown to help reduce
incidents and improve safety by
promoting high driving standards and
identifying areas i which mare work 15
required. for instance with refresher
training and driving assessments

The new vehicies are also fitted with the
latest automabite braking technology
Version 2 Emergency Brake Assist. which
ensures that a safe distance 1s mantaned
wth a vehicle in front. If necessary the
technology will automatically iInitiate
braking should the set distance be
breached The system reduces rear-end
inc dents. enhances overall driving
performance and improves fuel efficiency
The vehicies are also fitted with the latest
Eurc 6 fuel-efficient engines to further
ncrease fuel efficiency.
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Cur telemetry system allows us to review
driver behaviour and we use this data to
carry out in-depth risk analysis, allowing
us to reward good driving technigue and
identify where driving standards may

be lacking, and we implement driving
assessments and additional on-road
driver training accordingly Telematics
management traimng 1S ongoing

across the business with a focus on
improvements of the seven KPIs listed
against each driver when driving
commercially. namely Green Band
driving, Harsh Braking, Cornering and
Acceleration, Qver-revving. Over-speed
and Engine idhng This 1s supported by
the Fleet Management team issuing
weekly updates to the business as a
Telermatics Performance Summary
Report.

Qur continued focus remains driver
safety and competence through both
DCRC and Driver Assessors, who are
gual:fied through ROSPA Investment
N Mmanagement training covering areas
such as transport regulations and fleet
management ensures operator Licence
'O licence”) comphance and a pipeline
of talent for these critical areas.

The Fleer Managemeant team's Regional
Iransport Maragers {"RTM"s) have a
number of Service Centres allocated to
each of them, with their reles being that
of a chirect link to the Service Centre
management teams giving professional
guidance, advice and support In a number
of key areas, Including drnver and fleet
comphance, vehicle mamtenance and
repairs, telematics, licensing, accident
management and driver behaviour,

Each RTM is required to attend an
approved Logistics UK Drniving Assessors
Course As aresult of lockdown these
courses were delayed thus boosting

the flexibility of available on-road and
classroom based assessments across the



CASE STUDY

CUSTOMER CENTRIC
APPROACH TO SAFETY

We believe that health and
safety should have a clear
purpose - to reduce risks.
This is why risk assessment is
the driving factor behind our
approach. In practical terms,
we only introduce a process
if it is directly and clearly
linked to an operational risk.

For any safety process to be effective,
11’5 essential that it engages people.
Good health and safety rebes on
engagement. We want to create a culture
of openness where safety 1s seen as a
benefit and an intrinsic part of the
business and 1ts commercial success, not
a separate audit and pohcing function
ahgned exclusively to regulation,

Customer centric safety recognises that
zach stakeholder has a different need
and that by treating each stakehoider as
a genuine customer we are more likely to
achieve sustainable engagement, which
ultimately reduce risks

When designing any safety process,
the challenge is to try to meet the
needs of all key stakeholders involved
in that process and strike the right
batance Customer centricity s about
understanding stakeholder needs and
making sure that we always ask the
question when doing something new
- who are the stakeholders - what's
the hest solution we can design?

For example, this year we launched our
‘Take 5' campaign using customer centric
principles This s a behavioural
programme with the aim of engaging
colleagues to aveoid five acts that could
help to avoid a serious accident The
campaign Is very simple and a visual
rerminder of what we canall do to

reduce risks

DX (Group) ple Annua Report and Accounts 2020
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Corporate Responsibility continued

Across our culturally diverse workforce,
we aim to create an environment where
all our employees feel appreciated,

recognised and valued.

business High-nsk drivers and drivers of
concern are identified through the many
online management reporting sultes
avallable to Fleet Management, Qur online
management systems allow for Service
Centre, Regional and Group-wide risk
analysis to be estaklished through
accurate information and reporting of
trends and concerns at ali levels including
to ndividual driver level, This also allows
for a more targeted approach to an
on-road training and refresher programme
implemented and sustained across the
Company

Engagement with the Group's drivers is
critical to cur approach to road safety
and we seek emplayee comment and
feedback as part of all of our processes
and on an ad-hoc basis when we connect
with our drivers and other stakeholders

Our Employees

Across our culturally diverse workforce.
we aim to create an environment where
all our employees feel appreciated
recognised and valued

Adherng to our obligations under the
Eguality Act 2010, including Gender
Pay Gap reporting, 1s a fundamental
requirernent, however we strive to go
beyond this We have policies and
proactive programmes in place for
recruitrment. career development and
promotion that are based solely on the
ability and performance of the individual
whilst also algning to the needs of the
Group

Apprenticeship and bespoke in-house
programmes are availlable to all our
employees These focus on enhancing
existing skill sets within current roles; as
well as developing new skills for future
roes Our induction programme also
ensures that all our new employees
understand our full product range as well
as the Group's vision. Since March 2020,
we have successfully worked with our
traning partners and in-house team to
establish new and mnmnovative ways of
continung to deliver both existing
traimng programmes as well as those
necassary to support cur managers and
emplovees in handhng the challenges of
lockdown

Al employees are offered a competitive
benefits package inciuding a provision for
death-in-service payments and access to
counselling and advice services. There are
a number of voluntary benefits, including
healthcare plans and gym discounts,
which support employee welfare and
welbeing. A variety of pension schemes
are provided that meet our auto-
enrclment obligations as well as
supporting our employees to plan for
their financial future

We encourage an interestin activites at
all levels and seek to receive and consider
the views of employees across a wide
range of matters This aim s promoted
through local. regional and Group-wide
imtiatives These initiatives ensure
two-way communication and employee
Involvement, and include access to the
Onerating Board to report and discuss
any 1ssues Regular news bulletins are
distributed throughout the Group and a
i-annual magazine 1s produced with a
mixture of business and employee news
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Senior management also attend regular
calls, meetings and conferences to ensure
cohesive engagement throughout the
Group, and ta raise awareness of the
financial and economic factors affecting
the Group's performance

During the coronavirus pandemic the
primary and most valued, based on
employee feedback, commumcation
channel with our employvees (bothin
work and furloughed) was through
regular two-way communication with
the Group's Chief Executive This
pradominantly tock the form of personal
emaills and indradual guestion and
answer sessions, avallable on request

All managers were also expected to
contact (ideally by telephone) all
furloughed employees at least weekiy
{or such longer period as the furloughed
employee felt was more suitable) to
discuss any concerns and to seek to
ensure therr wellbeing during the pericd
of furlough



s172 Statement

| he Directors are required by law (s1/2 of the Companies Act
2006) to act in a way which promotes the success of the
Company for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole.
In doing so the Board must also have regard to other

factors (the 's172 Matters').

This is the Company’s first 8172 Statement.
Here we summarise our activities, explam
how the Company has considered the
5172 Matters and engaged In constructive
dialogue with employees, suppliers.
customers and others; and has had regard
to employee interests, the need to foster
the Company's business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others, and the
effect of that consideration, Includmg on
the principal decisions taken by the
Company durning the financial year, Wwe
also signpost where more detaill can be
found on the s172 matters in this Annual
Report and Accounts.

The Directors are satisfied that they have
complied with these requirements.

An ilustration of the Company's approach
to the s172 matters, which identifies our
stakehotders, can be found on pages 25
and 27/ outlining the Company's Customer
Centric Approach to health and safety.

The Likely Consequences of Any
Decision in the Long Term

The Directors understand the business
and the evolving environment in which
we operate, including the recent
challenge presented by caronavirus and
the risk of a second wave or of future
pandemics. Based on the Company's
Mission (inside front cover) and with the
first phase of the turnarcund complete,
the strategy set by the Board 15 intended
to strengthen our position as a leading
freight and courier business, while
keeping safety and social responsibility
fundamental to our business approach,

The Interests of the

Company’s Employees

Our employees are interested n sulpjects
such as opportunities for development
and progression, working arrangements
(especially as a result of the coronavirus
pandemic), opportunities to share ideas,
civersity and inclusion, and compensation
and benefits, and we have developed
varnous communcation channels to help
meet their needs Our leadership team s
approachable and has regular visits at
depots service centres and other sites.
Qur engagement with our employees

is discussed in more ¢detail in the Qur
Employees section of our Corporate
Responsibility Report on page 28.

The Need tec Foster and Manage
the Company’'s Business
Relaticnships with Its Suppliers,
Customers and Other Stakeholders
We and our business partners are
interested in long-term partnerships and a
collaborative approach Our engagement
with cur suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders s critical and is discussed in
more detal under Customer Proposition
on pages 6 to 7, in the Case Studies on
pages 17 and 19 and in the Directors’
Report on pages 42 to 44

The Impact of the Company’s
Operations on the Community
and the Environment

QOur commitment to address matters of
concernn the communities in which we
operate and the wider environmenta!
concerns is discussed In more detail in
our Corporate Governance Report
section on pages 24 to 28

The Desirability of the Company
Maintaining a Reputation for High
Standards of Business Conduct
Our reputation s vital to cur centinued
success and our approach to business
conduct is identified in our Mission

and Approach and discussed in our
Governance Report on pages 32 to 35.

The Need to Act Fairly as Between
Members of the Company

We address this area in more detaib in the
Chairman’s introduction to Corporate
Governance and the Governance Repart
on pages 32 to 35 and our approach is
dlustrated by our Rermuneration Policy
which s being tabled at this year's Annual
General Meeting Our approach to
remuneration aligns the interest of the
Executive Directors with that of the
shareholders, Qur approach is to attract
and retain the best possible people who
have the capacity and drive to meet the
Company’s strategic and financial
objectives To attract and retain the
Executive Directors we offer them a basic
salary and pension that is fair, reasonable
and affordable for the Company. They
are incentivised to deliver growth of the
business by way of a discretionary annual
bonus scineme, which rewards the
Executive Directors based on achieving
year-on-year targets and longer-term
incentives through the Performance Share
Flan introduced in December 2017 1n
order to create and protect long-term
shareholder value.
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Board of Directors

STRONG
LEADERSHIP

RONALD SERIES

Executive Chairman

0N 19 October 2017, Ron joined

DX as Executive Chairman He

has previously heid executive

and nan-executive positions

with a number of companies

with international operations in
transport, logistics. shipping. real
estate and information technology.
Included among them are Tuffnells
Parcels Express Limited where he
was chairman dunng its turnaround
In 2002 to 2005 Ron s currantly
chairman of Braemar Shipping
Services plc

Nom ~atior Committes
Reru-eration Comrittps

Audit & Ris«< Covmittes

LLOYD DUNN

Chief Executive Officer

On 9 October 2017, Lloyd jomed
DX as Chief Exaecutive Officer, he
joined the Board on 19 October
2017 Lloyd has been in transport
for 45 years, In 1985, he joined
Russell Black as a founding
member of Nightfreight In 2002
he jommed Tuffrnelis, and he became
Managing Drrector in 2003 and
CEQ n 2005 He led the company
during 1ts turnaround leading toits
sale for E£135 million in 2015
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DAVID MULLIGAN

Chief Financial Officer

David has over 20 years of
experience in seniar financial
positionsin a nurmber of listed
companies, and joined DX in April
2018. He was most recently CFO at
Hornby plc, where he was involved
in deliverning the restructuring and
turnaround of the business The
major part of his career was at
Morgan Sindall Group plc, the
construction and regeneration
group, which he joined In 1997

He became CFO in 2004 a
positicon he hield until his departure
In 2013 David qualified as a
chartered accountant with

Ernst & Young in 1995




RUSSELL BLACK

Non-executive Director

Cn 19 October 2017, Russell joined
DX as a Non-executive Director. He
has over 40 years of expenence in
the transport industry and was
founder and CEQ of Nightfreight
from 1284 to 2002, during which
time it was listed on the London
Stock Exchange,

PAUL GOODSON

Non-executive Director

On 192 October 2017, Paul joined
DX as a Non-executive Director
He was previously executive

charrman of Great Bear Distribution,

a leading independent third-party
logistics business, which he
successfully sold to Culina to create
a £400 million group Paul spent 13
years with Barclays Private Equity

IAN GRAY

Non-executive Director

lan joined DX as a Non-executive
Director as of 1 July 2017 Qver

the past 30 years, he has been
advising comparies on business
transformation and strategy
development and has provided
high-level counsel to UK companies
across a range of industry sectors,
including distribution retall,
manufacturing and pharmacies.

He 1s currently a non-executive
director at Clancy Group Holdings
Lirmited, one of the largest privately
owned construction businesses In
the UK
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Chairman’s Introduction to Corporate Governance

Dear Sharehalder,

| am pleased to introduce the Group’s corporate governance report One of my key responsibilities 1s to ensure the Group
maintains high standards of corporate governance and to review the corporate governance structures, including the various
Board committees, to ensure they continue to be appropriate to the size and complexity of the Group as the business evolves

As Executive Chairman, | lead the Board of Directors and have primary responsiizlity to provide the necessary leadership, input
and guidance to the Company and the Board in restoring the business to a level of sustainable profitability that creates long-term
shareholder valug | also have responsibdlity for steenng the Board agenda to ensure it focuses on the impaortant operational and
financial matters

The current Board has the appropniate blend of skills, capabilities and experience to deal with the challenges faced by the
business Industry knowledge, supported by financial experience, I1s particularly impaortant for the Company at this time of
continued uncertainty regarching Brexit and the coronavirus pandemic and the Board has a depth of experience in these areas.

The Board has adopted the Guoted Companies Alllance corporate governance code (the '‘QCA Code’) As a Board we believe
that by complying with the QCA Code the Group has an appropnate level of governance for its current stage of deveiopment, as
well as providing a suitable framework in the medium to long term The QCA Code supports the Group's approach to managing
risks and transparent communications with stakeholders Where appropriate, this corporate governance statement and report
have been prepared to comment on the apphcabon of the QCA Code's ten principles and to address the disclosure requirements
recommended by it A detailed explanation of how the Group has addressed the QCA's ten principles 1s avalable on the website
at investors dxdelivery.com/websites/dxgroup/English/2010/corporate-governance

In keep-ng the carparate governance structures under review, during the year we have cont-nued to recognise the importance of
the Audit & Risk, Remuneration and Nomination committees and reviewed the terms of reference for the Audit & Risk Committee
Each of the Committees’ terms of reference are published on our website, We have also reviewed the list of matters specificaliy
reserved for decision by the full Board Owerall, this structure will ensure preper Independent scrutiny and challenge and support
the delivery of the growth strategy

During the year, the Group's corporate governance arrangements were unchanged with the structure and members of the Board
and committees remaning the same

Following a formal assessment of the Board's ettectveness undertaken in August 2018, the review's recommencdlations as outh ned
in last year's repart and accounts have been implemented during the year

Davict Mufigan had acted as Company Secretary as well as CFO. On 26 March 2023, Russell Deards was appomted as Company
Secretary and Head of Legal. and he has now taken on David's company secretanal responsibilities

Ronald Series
Executive Chairman
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Governance Report

The Board s responsible for ensuring the highest standards of corporate governance and for prormoting the long-term success
of DX.

The Board
The roles of the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate with each having clearly defined duties and
responsibilities

The Executive Chairman provides leadership to the Board. He is responsible for chairing the Board meetings and for setting the
agenda for the Board meetings (in consuitation with the Chief Executive Officer) and ensuring that the Board has sufficient time
to discuss issues on the agenda, especially those relating to strategy. The Executive Chairman is also respoensible for ensuring that
the Directors receive afl of the necessary information and reports He s also responsible for ensuring the market and regulators
are kept appraised in a timely manner of any material events and developrments, and along with the Chief Executive Officer that
the appropriate standards of corporate governance are effectively communicated and adhered to throughout the business

The Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for leadership of the DX management and its employees an a day-to-day basis
In conjunction with the Operating Board. the Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for the implementation of Board decisions

During the financial year. the composition of the Board has been unchanged As of the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprised the Executive Chairman (Ronald Series), two Executive Dorectors (Lloyd Dunn and David Mulligan) and three Non-
executive Directors (lan Gray. Paul Goodson and Russel Black).

Detaills of each Director's background and experience can be found on pages 30 to 31. The Board's mix of skills and business
experience is important to the Company at this stage of its development and ensures an infoermed review and debate of
performance and strategy. Each Director 1s responsible for keeping their skills up to date and relevant to being a director of
a listed company

Whilst the Company's turnaround strategy has been successfully implemented, the Board continues to have strict control over
key areas of expenditure. For example, the threshold for approving capital expenditure by the full Board 1s £50,000 and the
approval of all senior appointments with a base salary above £100,000 s reserved to the Remuneration Committee. This helps
to ensure g high level of dilgence m key capital and people decisions

Independence

The actions and decisions of all the Non-executive Directors who served during the year and up to the date of this report are
considered by the Board to be independent in both character and judgement. The three Non-executive Directors provide a
balance betweean the Executive and independent Directors

Role of the Board

The Board meets regularly with the aim of restoring the Company to long-term growth and profitability. Directors are supplied
with a comprehensive Board pack before all Board meetings, which includes the agenda, previous minutes, detailed financial
information and all other supporting papers necessary to have a fully informed discussicn. The Board ensures that the necessary
changes are being affected and investment being made to achieve DX's strategic priorities,

A full copy of the schedule of matters reserved for the Board 1s avallable on www dxdelivery com.

Day-to-day operational and financial management s delegated to DX's Operating Board The Operating Board meets bi-moenthly
and provides the Board with detalled monthly reports

Operation of the Board

The Board meets regularly and there were eight scheduled Board meetings during the financial year. Any specific actions arsing
during meetings agreed by the Board are followed up and reviewed at subseguent Board meetings to ensure theirr completion
The Board zlso keeps in close contact between formal meetings and will conduct ad hoc meetings as required. If a Director 1s
unable to attend a Board meeting. the Chairman will canvass his views In advance and ensure that the Director 1s promptly
advised of the outcome of the matters under discussion

Attendance Scheduled Board meelings Audim & sk Comm ttee Eern.reranion Committes Nomorat sn Comm tiee
Ronald Series 8/8 - - 3/3
Lloyd Dunn B/8 - _ -
David Mulhigan 8/8 - - -
lan Gray 8/8 77 - -
Paul Goodson 8/8 7/7 2/2 -
Russell Black 8/8 - 2/2 3/3

Each Director receives induction training on appointment including wisits to principal sites and meetings with operational
management, and all Directors have access to iIndependent legat advice on request

All Directors act in what they consider to be the best interests of the Company consistent with their statutory duties.
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Governance Report continued

Operation of the Board continued

The business at each scheduled Board meeting includes regular reports from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financiat
Officer covering business performance. markets and competition, health and safety and investor and analyst updates, as well as
progress against strategic objectives and capital expenditure projects The Board also considers reports from functional heads
from across the business, Board meetings are frequently held at different Group locations in order to review local operations,
During the coronavirus pandemic, several meetings were held remotely in accordance with the Company’s Articles

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the Normination Committee, the Audit & Risk Committee and
the Rermuneration Committee Each Committee operates according to its own terms of reference (available at
https: A www dxdelivery.com/investor/about-dx in the publications tab)

Audit & Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Commuittee has primary respansibility for manmitoring the guality of internal controls, ensuring that the financial
performance of DX is properly measured. ensuring the integrity of the financial staternents, and reporting and reviewing reports
from DX's auditer relating to DX accounting and internal controls. in all cases having due regard to the interests of shareholders
Further information on the Committee s set out in the relevant report on pages 36 to 37,

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee determines remuneration for the Executive Directors and senior managers in the Graup Further
information on the work of the Commttes s set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 41

Nomination Committee
The members of the Nomimaticon Commitiee are Ronald Sarnes (Executive Chairman) and Russell Black (Non-executive Director).
The Nomination Committee recommends the appointment of Directors and 1s responsible for succession planning

Investor Relations

DX places a great deal of importance on commurmcation with all shareholders There is regular dialogue with indrvidual institutional
sharehcolders throughout the year and formal aresentations after the interir and preiminary results In particular. during the year
to June 2020, presentations were made to inst.tutional investors In relation to the Group’s growth plans

The 2020 Annual General Meeting ("AGM™) will be held on 26 November 2020 at lam The notice of the meeting 1s enclased. It is
also avallabie to download from www dxdelivery com

The Board encourages dralogue between the Directors and investors, and the Directors are avallable at each AGM to hear the
views of all shareholders and to answer any guest'ons about the business generally and about the resolutions proposed

The princpal methods of communication with private investors remain the Annual Report and Accounts. the interim statements
and DX's website (www.dxdelivery.com). The website, which includes a DX Investor Centre, is viewed as an efficient and cost-
effective way to communicate widely with all shareholders, and DX’s financial reports. publications and press releases can be
viewed here together with carporate governance information, key dates tn the financial year. and news about DX, its services and
issues affecting the industry

The Board also received shareholder feedback from finnCap (DX's Nominated Adviser and Joint Broker) and from Liberum
(Dx's Jomnt Broker) durning the course of the year

Culture

Critical to delivery of growth of the business 1s ensuring we have the right culture in the business, At the heart of the plan s local
responsibility and accountability for the performance of each depot and service centre, and a commitment ta deliver the changes
to the business to return it to longer-term, sustainabte profitability. |he Board and senior management help to support and
reinforce this culture through their own personal behaviour and commitment, by being highly visible in the business, by making
timely and informed decisions and by adopting an attitude of continucus iImprovement

Internal Controls and Risk Management
DX has in place a system of internal financial controls commensurate with its current size and activities,

The Board has overall respensibility for DX's systern of internal control to safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’
nterests The risk managerment process and systems of internal controls are designed to identify the main risks that the Group
faces in delivering its strategy and growth plan and ensure that spproprate policies and procedures are in place to minimise
these risks to the Group. ncluding the establisnment of appropriate business continuity planming arrangements The Company
maintamns a risk management regisier whch is reviewead and discussed every six months w.th the Operating Board ara the
Chairmar of the Audit & Risk Comrmittee
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The Beard has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the period ended 27 June 2020 and up te the date
of the signing of the Annual Report and Accounts The Board will continue to develop and implement internal control procedures
appropriate to DX's activities and scale

The Board recognises that an essential part of its responsibility 1s the effective safeguarding of assets, the proper recognition of
liabilities and the accurate reporting of results. The Group has a comprehensive systern for regular reparting to the Board. This
includes monthly management accounts, functional reports and an annual planning and budgeting systerm The financial reporting
systermn compares results aganst budget and against the prior year. and the Board reviews its forecasts for the financial vear on

a regular basis

The Board has established a formal policy of authonsation setting out matters which require its approval, and certain authorities
which are delegated to the Executive Directars and rmembers of the Operating Board

Strategy
& description of the Group's strategy can be found in the section on Strategic Objectives on pages 12 to 13 An overview of the

business model for DX Freight and DX Express 15 on pages 16 to 19
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Audit & Risk Committee Report

Dear Shareholder,

This report provides an overview of how the Committee operated, an insight into the Committee’'s activities and its role in
ensuring the integnity of the Group's published financial information and ensuring the effectiveness of its risk management,
controls and related processes

Committee Structure

The membership of the Committee, which remamed unchanged during the year, comprises two Non-executive Directors, lan Gray
as Chairman and Paul Goodson as the other memiber The Committee has been selected with the aim of providing the range of
financial and commercial expertise necessary to meet its responstbilities, The Board 1s confident that the collective experience
of the Audit & Risk Committee members enables them to act as an effective Committee

Meetings

The Committee had four scheduled meetings during the year and three additional meetings The attendance by members can be
seen on page 33 | report to the Board. as a separate agenda item, on the activity of the Committee and matters of particular
relevance and the Board recelves copies of the Committes minutes Attendance at meetings of the Committes by non-members
15 by Invitation and at the discretion of the Committee. The Chief Financial Officer and the external auditor are invited to attend
some meetings of the Committee The Committee also meets separately with the Chief Financial Officer quarterly

Roles and Responsibilities
The main duties of the Audit Commuittee are set out Inits terms of reference, which are avallable under the publications tab at
https://www dxdelvery com/investor/about-dx/

This year, Committee discussions included the following key 1iterns:
> Impact of coronavirus pandemic and going congcearn,

> Adoption of the QCA Code;

> Review of 2019 Annual Report,

> Financial reporting (including IFRS 16 'Leases” and Making Tax Digital):
> Internal Audit Charter,

> Whistleblowing policy;

> Modern Slavery;

= Cyber Secunity;

= Reappomintment of external auditor:

> Review of the Group risk register;

> Ant-bribery and Fraud:

> Commttee governance;

> Health and safety:

> Imphcation of Brexit for the Group: and

> External audit plan and strategy for 2020 Annual Report.

Areas of focus

This yvear, the Committee focused on the following areas

» The adoption of IFRS 16 'Lease Accounting’;

> Cyber Security, and

> Assessing the cantinuea independence of the external auditors
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Internal Audit

The Group's internal audit function 1s overseen by and reports mdependently to the Committee. During the year, the Committee
has approved an updated Internal Audit Charter, providing that team with the authorisation to conduct a certam scope of work
and the necessary independence to operate effectively The scope of internal audit's coverage 1s based upon their Group-wide
risk assessment and in the year has included a series of service centre audits with targeted reviews of DX Secure.

Whistleblowing

The Company's Whistleblowing Policy, approved 1in 2018, encourages and protects legitimate whistleblewing, An independent
third-party whistleblowing helphne, secure web portal and mobile app, allows employees to report concerns about individuals
who have acted improperly All contacts are treated confidentially and ananymously if prefarred. A small number of matters were
considerad by the Committes, none of which required any external legal advice,

Non-Audit Services

KPMG LLP undertakes tax accounting services for the Company as well as being its auditor As the Group 1s classified as an Other
Entity of Public Interest ("OEPI™) under revised ethical standards for auditors issued in 2019 KPMG will ne longer be able to provide
both audit and tax accounting services for the Group after 15 December 2020 The Committee s cogmsant of this confict and a
decision to resolve this matter will be made in the near future

External Auditor

To ensure the auditor's independence and objectivity, the Committee annually reviews DX's relationship with the auditor.
Following the review in 2020, DX concluded that it has an objective and professional relationship with KPMG LLP and that there
are sufficient controls and processes in place to ensure the required level of iIndependence | addition, the auditor 1s required to
review and confirm its independence to the Audit & Risk Committee on a regular basis

Given the situation outhined above the Cammittee is still considering KPMG LL P's reappointment as DX's auditor or tax advisors,
It 15 noted that the current financial year would be the last year of KPMG's tenure as the Company’s auditor in line with the policy
to re-tendler audit services every fen years

Audit Process

KPMG LLP prepares an audit plan which sets out the scope of and approach to the audit, significant risks and other areas to be
targeted. This plan s reviewed and agreed in advance by the Audit & Risk Committee Following their review, the auditor presents
its findings to the Audit & Risk Committee for discussion

Committee Effectiveness

In order to ensure that the Committee remains effective, the Board will be appointing an external organisation to perform an
Independent review of the Committee to evaluate its performance.

lan Gray
On behalf of the Audit & Risk Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
(including the Remuneration Committee Report)

Dear Shareholder,

Chairman’s Annual Statement

DxX’s approach to remuneration aligns the interests of the Executive Directors to the shareholders Our approach ts to attract and
retaun the bast possible people who have the capacity and drive to meet the Company's strategic and financial objectives To
attract and retain the Exacutive Directors we offar them a basic salary and pension that s fair reasonable and affordable for the
Company They are incentivised to deliver growth of the business by way of a discretionary annua! bonus scheme, which rewards
the Executive Directors based on achieving year-on-year targets and longer-terrm incentives through the Performance Share Plan
introcduced in Decermber 2017 1n order to create and protect long-term shareholder value.

Report from the Remuneration Committee
The Board has delegated certain responsibilities for Executive Directors’ remunearation to the Remuneration Committee

The Rernuneration Committee is chaired by Paul Goodson, with Russell Black being its other member Any other attendees are

at the invitation of the Committee Chairman only and may inciude the Executive Chairman The Remuneration Committee meets
accorcing to DX's reguirements. There were three meetings held in the financial year. The Remuneration Committes determines
the remuneration packages for the Executive Chairman, the Executive Directors and senior managers, and any major remuneration
plans or pohcies for the Group. This Includes implementation of the Group's share incentive plans. The Committes’s role 15 to
ensure that the principles of the Company’s Remuneration Policy are aligned with the business strategy and promote long-term
shareholder value

In view of the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on our employees and other stakeholders, the CEO and CFO velunteered fo
walve thelr bonus entitlernent for the pericd ended 27 June 2020,

Full terms of reference for the Committee are avallable on www dxdelivery com.

The Committee also receives advice and assistance, when reguired, from FIT Remuneration Consuftants LLP, ks external
remuneration adviser.

The main items of business considered by the Remuneration Commuttee during the financial year included:
> Review of remuneration strategy and policy:

> Awards to senior managers under the Performance Share Plan 2017, and

= Salary and annual bonus for Executive Directors and other senior managers

In fine with best practice, the Remuneration Policy will be tabled at the 2020 AGM far an adwvisory vote

The Executive Chairman's base annual salary was changed during the penod from £240,000 to £192.000 to reflect his reduced
time commitment to the Company There were no changes to the Chief Executive Officer's or Chief Financial Officer's
remuneratbon during the penod.

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts and Termination Policy

Executive Directors hold a service agreement with an indefinite term and a fixed maximurm termination pernod of 12 months for

the Executive Charrrman and CEC. and six months for the CFO Any payments in respect of termimation reflect base salary only

and do not include annual bonus The Company's palicy on the setting of notice periods under the Executive Directors' service

agreements s considered to be in Ine with externa! market trends and s reviewed by role to protect the Company’s knowledge
anc operations
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The base annual salanes for the Executive Directors for the 53 weeks to 3 July 2027 will be as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £0C0 changs
Ronald Seres (Executive Charman) 192 200 (4%
Lloyd Dunn (Chief Executive Officer) 300 00 -
Dawvid Mulligan (Chief Financial QOfficer) 200 200 -

Each of the Executive Directors 15 eligible to participate in a discretionary annual bonus scheme, should one be put in place for
any given year, with the potential to recewe bonus payments up to a maximum of 100% of salary in the case of the Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and 50% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer. Any bonus payments are at the discretion
of the Board and subjact to such conditions, including EBITDA and KPi targets, as the Board may determine A scheme was in
place in respect of this financial year but aiven the coronavirus pandemic the Executive Directors have waived their entitlement
to any bonus. Only the Remuneration Commisttee can authorise executive termination payments,

Non-Executive Directors
Non-executive Directors have letters of appointment sach with a term of three years (subject to re-election at the AGM) and a

fixed maximum termination period of three months

The base annual fees for the Non-executive Directors for the 53 weeks to 3 July 2021 will be as follows:

2021 20 %
£000 £000 charge
lan Gray 42 42 -
Russell Biack 42 47 -
Paul Goodson 42 42 -

Pay for all other empioyees Is based upon external market rates, Job role. internal comparators and business impact. Both DX's
financial and operational performance and each person’s personal performance are also taken into account when setting salaries

Directors’ Shareholdings

The Directors who held office at 3¢ June 2020 had the following interests, including Persons Closely Associated ("PCA”), In the
shares of the Company fexcluding any entitiements that may become due under the Performance Share Plan 2017 or Restricted
Share Awards outlined below):

Ordinary Shares
27 June 2020

Lloyd Dunn 61,949,293
David Mulligan 2,352,941
Russell Black 2,481,882
Ronald Series 2,135,294
Paul Goodson 2,901,510
lan Gray 800,000

During the year. Ron Series purchased 320.000 Ordimary Shares (70,000 on 18 March 2020, 140,000 on 4 June 2020 and

180,000 on 30 June 20200, Lloyd Dunn {(including his PCASs} purchased 517,212 (20 March 2020), Paul Goodson purchased

701,510 Ordinary Shares (300.00C on 24 April 2020, 200,000 on 12 June 2020 and 201,510 on 26 June 2020) and lan Gray
(ncluding his PCAS) purchased 200,000 (on 28 May 2020)

Total Single Figure of Remuneration for Directors (Audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Director for the period ended 27 June 2020
and the prior vear

Period ended 27 June 2020 Year ended 50 sone 2019

Basic salary Pension
and fees Allowances Banefits contributions Bonus Total Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £QGC
Ronald Series 197 10 3 20 - 230 276
Lloyd Dunn 295 19 2 - - 316 322
David Mulhigan 197 30 1 - - 228 230
Russell Black 1 - 4 - - 45 45
Paul Geodsen 1 - 2 - - 43 44
lan Gray a1 - - - - 41 42
Total 812 59 12 20 - 903 959
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
(including the Remuneration Committee Report)

The Directors voluntarily waived 20% of their salanes and fees for the month of May 2020 to assist the business through the
COronavirus pandemic. In adaition, the bonus potential for the CEQ and CFO was wairved during the year given the impact an
the business of the coronavirus pandemic There was no bonus potential for the year ended 30 June 2079

Executive Directors’ External Appointments
Raonald Seres is chairman at Braemar Shepping Services ple. No other Executive Oirector has an external appointment.

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table shows the Company's actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to dividends and retarned profit

2020 G Charac

£m £rm £m

Staff costs £102.5 £950 £75
Dwidends £nil £l -
Loss before tax E(1.3) £017) FO 4

Share Plans (Audited)

Performance Share Plan 2017 (*“PSP”)

The PSF has been designed to provide an appropriate incentive for the management team at DX to deliver a turnaround in the
Company; the initial awards ('Recovery Awards'} were made during the year to 30 June 2018, The PSP 1s established as a share
plan under which awards of shares, the vesting of which ts subject to performance conditions, can be made to selected employees
of the Company. including the Executive Chairman and the Executive Directors,

The award s made in ene of two ferms: a nil or nominal cost option. where a participant can decide when to exercise his/her
award aver Ordinary Shares in the Company during a hmited period of time after it has vested, or a conditional award, where a
participant will receve free shares an the vesting of their award. No awards will be granted after the tenth anniversary of the
15 December 2017 General Meeting.

Participants will bear the obligation for the payment of Employers’ Natonal Insurance Contributions (*NICs™) when the awards
are exercised As a result the numbers of shares awarded were further ‘'grossed up’ by c.16.7% to comgpensate the holders of
awards for this transfer of lability.

The total number of shares over which aill awards (Including compensatory awards in respect of the transfer of Emplovers' NICs)
are granted will not exceed 15% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company from time to time (and as further diluted by the
awards under the PSP}

The awards shall be subject to a Share Price performance measure as follows:

3-4-5¥ear Share Pr ce targer % o Rucovery Lwxard that vests

Less than 12 S5p 0%

12.5p 25%

Between 12.5p and 40p Pro-rata on straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
40p 100%

The Share Price target will be tested at each of the third. fourth and fifth anriversanes of the commencement of the PSP n
December 2017, and on each occasicn the Share Price measurement is to be based on the 30-day average share price prior ta
the test date Achievement of a Share Price measurement on a later test date which is greater than the achieved measurement on
a previous test date will result in additicnal vest:ing of the award in accordance with the above table,

In addition 1o the Share Frice targets stated above, the awards may be subject to such other terms as the Remuneration Committes
may specify. iIncluding Performance Conditions and/or Holding Periods before allowing any vesting of awards on any occasion
Awards for which the Share Price target 1s attained at any test date will vest 12 manths later (being the fourth, fifth and sixth
anniversanes of the award date) provided that the participant is still a Director or employes of the Group at that time

An award in the form of an opton will normaly remain exercisable until the tenth annwversary of the date of grant All deatings in
shares to be acquired from the PSP shall only be by arrangement with the Company’s nominated broker An award will lapse upon
a participant leaving the employment of the Group, sulject to normal good leaver provisions. In the event of a change of control of
the Company all awards may vest early to the extent that the performance conditions have. in the comion of the Remuneration
Committee, been satisf-ed at that tme

The Caompany retains a power to reduce the potential vesting of unvested awards (Inciuding to zere) {often referred to as malus?)

or to recoup the value of prev ously vested awards from a particpant within three years of the date of vestng if it considers it
appropnate to do so (often referred to as ‘clawback’).
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Restricted Share Awards

Restricted Share Awards were made to Russell Black and Paul Goodson on 21 December 2017 Such awards are not iinked to

parformance and will have the foliowing key features

> The proposed awards to each individual represent awards over 012% of current 1ssued share capital;

> Such awards will reflect the transfer of Employers’ National Insurance Contributions, and the numbers of Shares were further
‘grossed up' by ¢ 16 7% to compensate the holders of the awards for this transfer of hability,

> The share awards will vest after three years, subject to continued service as a Director:

> Good leaver and change of contro’ provisions similar to those for PSP awards will apply; and

> The awards made will be counted towards the overall 15% of issued share capital from time to time availlable for awards.

PSP and Restricted Awards outstanding
AL 30 June 2020, cutstanding awards to Directors under the PSP and Restricted Awards were as follows:

27 June AL June
P52 Awards 2020 2019
Ronald Series 23,370,626 23,370,626
Lloyd Dunn 43,402,592 43,402 592
David Multligan 5,721,784 5721784

27 June 30 June
Restricted Awards 2020 2019
Russell Black 834,665 834 665
Paul Goodson 834,665 834,665

See note 29 to the Financial Statements for detaills of the total number of outstanding awards under the schemes

Paul Goodson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Report

The names and biographical details of the Directors currently serving on the Board are set out on pages 30 to 31,

The Company's approach to the appointment and replacement of Directors 1s governead by its Articles and all relevant legislation.
and takes into consideration any recommendations of the QCA Code

The Company's Articies require that all Directors should be subject to election by shareheiders at the first AGM following their
appointment and that one-third of the Directors (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third) retire by rotation at each
AGM, with each Director also being sub,ect to re-election at intervals of not more than three years The Board has the power to
appoint adaditional Lirectors or to Til & casual vacancy amongst the Lirectors, Any Director 50 appolnted by Lhe Buard holds
office only until the next AGM and may then offer himself/herself for election by the shareholders Paul Goodson along with
Russell Black will offer themseives for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

The paowers of the Directors are determined by the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other relevant legislation. At the 2019
AGM, the Directors were authorised to 1ssue and allot shares, to disapply the statutory pre-emption nghts and to buy back shares.
This authority remains in place untit the conclusion of the 2020 AGM. It will be proposed at the 2020 AGM that the Directors will
be granted a new authority to allot shares, to disapply the statutory pre-emption rights and to buy back shares The Company
may by ordinary resolution declare dividends not exceeding the amount recommended by the Board

Results and Dividends
The results for the period ended 27 June 2020 are shown on page 50, The Group's loss for the year after tax was £1 8 million
As previously announced, no dividend will be payable for the 2020 financial penod This policy remains under review.

Principal Activities, Risks and Review of the Business
The Group's continuing activities are the provision of delivery solutions, Including parcel freight, secure courier and logistics
services in the UK and Ireland. The principal activity of the Company 1s that of a holding company.

The Strategic Report set out on pages 1to 29 provides a fair review of the Group's business for the period ended 27 June 2020
It also explains the objectives of the Group, 11ts progress against those obyectives, 1ts competition and the markets in which it
operates, the principal risks and uncertainties it faces, the Group’s financial position, key performance indicators and hikely future
developments of the business

The Group's activities expose It 1o a vanety of financial nsks Notes 3 and 28 to the Financial Statements describe the Group's
exposure to such risks, including the policies 1 place for financiai sk management.

The Board has continued to discuss the implications of Brexit and keeps developments under review, It has assessed the potential

Brexit scenarnos on existing contracts, workforce, supply chain and on the regulatory environment We continue to believe Brexit

risks have a more indirect impact on DX rather tnan direct for the following reascns.

> DX is predominantly a UK-based delivery network:

> Freight and parcels moving between the Group's operations in the UK and the Republic of Ireland could be disrupted but this
represents albzout 1% of the Group's revenue,

> We have considered the knock-on impact to highways of vehicle delays at UK ports, and are satisfied that this wili have little
impact on cur collection, delivery and trunking activities;

> Our supply chaim s not reliant upon time-sensitive or critical Imports;

> DX does employ foreign-national employees but these tend to be long-serving (and not seasonal) so the short-term risk of
changes 15 not considered high;

> Qur standard terms of trade allow for some cost pressures such as fuel to be passed onto our customers:

> The mposition of tanffs may affect the cost of procuring certain goods, such as vehicles, but we expect any such increases
would be reflected in the prices charged to our customers and we believe we are not at any specific disadvantage compared
with our competitors: and

> The risk to the wider economy from the gereral level of uncertainty 1s more hikely to have animpact on our customers This
could result inlower volumes and revenue and coud prolong the turnaround of the business

Going Concern

The Group has prepared trading and cash fiow forecasts for a period of three years, which have been reviewed and approved by
the Board. The forecasts included a base ¢case and a further severe but plausible downside scenaric Further details on these
forecasts can be found in note 2 to the financial statements

Tre Group a so has in place a £20 0 million invoice discounting faciity provided by BNP Paribas Commercial Finance, which was
not drawn at the year end Interest 15 charged at LIBOR plus 195%. along with a £0.2 million annual fixed charge

On the pasis of these forecasts and the invoice chscounting facity, and after a detaiied review of trading, financial position.
assessing the impact of any potential material disruption to the business and cash flow models, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and Company have adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In prepar ng the annual financial statements

42 DX (Group) plc Annua Report and Accounts 2020



Corporate Governance

The Board 15 fully committed to high standards of corporate governance. Detalls relating to the Company’s comphance with
the QCA Code for the financial year and a description of the Company's managemeant and reporting structure are given in the
Report on Governance pages 33 to 35 and Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 41

Anti-bribery and Corruption

DX takes a zero-tolerance apprcach to bribery and corruption and has a written anti-bribery and corruption policy in place
Training 15 provided to set the clear expectation that ernployees must act professionally and with integrity in all business dealings
and they are required to complete the g.ff register

Whistleblowing

DX has whistleblowing procedures under which employees are encouraged to inform the Executive Team or any Director of any
concerns they may have that the practices of OX or individuals are wrongful or contravene any applicable laws or regulations.
This approach 1s supported by an externally managed confidential whistleblowing phone line and email/onling channels to ensure
an open and ethical culture for the benefit of cur employees, customers and other stakehaolders.

Modern Slavery

DX's modern slavery transparency statement for the current financial year can be found on www.dxdelivery.com. DX also has in
place a supphier code of conduct reguiring all supphers and business partners to adhere to the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and to
conduct business in accordance with the standards of conduct acceptable to DX,

Corporate Responsibility

Information on corporate responsibility matters 1s set out on pages 24 10 28 These include disciosures on DX's environmental
policies (including detaills of the Group's greenhouse gas emissiens as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006
and the new Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) requirements) and of health and safety palicies. Further details
can also be found on the DX website, www dxdelivery com.

Disabled Employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned, In the event of members of staff becoming disabled. every effort is made to ensure that their emptoyment with the
Group continues and that agjustments or training are provicded as appropriate. Itis the policy of the Group that the training,
career development and promotion of disabled persans should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees

Notifiable Interests
The Company has been notifled of direct and indirect interests in voting rights equa! to or exceeding 3% of the Ordinary Share
capital of the Company as set out in the table below.

16 Sepiemizer 2020

Sharehoder =eorcentage halding Mumber of shares
Gatemore Capital Management LLP 35 58% 204.128,538
Hargreave Hale Limited 18 81% 107,920,000
Lloyd Dunn 10 80% 51,949 293
Ruffer LLP 5.22% 29,249,900
River and Mercantile 3.24% 18,572,929

Per sharsholder register as at 16 September 2020

Share Capital

Detaills of the Company's share capital are set out in note 19 to the financiat statements The Company's issued share capital
consists of 573,681,792 Ordinary Shares with a nominal value of £0 01 each All shares rank equally and are fully paid No person
holds shares carrying special nghts with regard to the control of the Company Each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the Company and no night to fixed iIncome The Company has no treasury shares

Directors’ Interests
The number of Ordinary Shares of the Company in which the Directors are beneficially interested and therr dealings in the shares
of the Company during the financial year are set out In the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 39.

No Director had any dealings in the shares of the Company between 27 June 2020 and the date of this report
Director Indemnities and Insurance
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s Articles the Company has purchased Directors’ and Officers’

habHity insurance. which remains in place at the date of this report The Company reviews its insurance policias on an annual basis
in order to satisfy itself that its level of cover remains adequate.
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Directors’ Report continued

Amendment to Company’s Articles
The Company may alter its Articles by special resolution passed at a general meeting

Donations
& total of £nid of charntable donations were made in the period ended 27 June 2018 (2018 £5,233)

No payments were made to any political parties (2019: £nib).

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

Each of the persons who were Directors of the Company at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as
they are aware. there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware, and each Director has taken all
the steps that he cught to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is aware of that information

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report and Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financiat statements im
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under
the AlM Ruies of the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and apphicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements on the same basis

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satishied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of affars of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that perod. In preparing each of

the Group and parent Company financial statements. the Directors are required to:

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

> Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable relevant and reliable:

> State whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSS as adopted by the EU:

> Assess the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applhcable, matters related to
going concern; and

> Use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to hquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations. or have no realistic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeauate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are responsible for such internal
control as they determine s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or error, and have genera! responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and derect fraud and other irregulanties.

Under applicable law and regulatians, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report (ncluding a s172 Staterment)
and a Directors’ Report that complies witn that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infarmation includied on the
Company’'s website. Legisiation in the UK goverring the preparation and disseminatwon of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

The Directors consider that the Annua Report and Accounts taken as a whole, 15 fair balanced and undersiandable and provides
the nformation necassary “or shareho'ders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board
Ronald Series

Executive Chairman
16 September 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of DX (Group) pic

1 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of DX (Group) plc ("the Company ') for the year ended 27 June 2020 which comprise
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of
Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Company Staternent of Changes in Equity, Consclidated
Staterment of Cash Flows, Company Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes. including the accounting poticies in note 3

In our opinion;

> the financial statements qive a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Company's affarrs as at 27 June
2020 and of the Group's loss for the yvear then ended;

> the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EUY;

> the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the EU and
as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audht in accordance with Internaticonal Standards on Auditing (UKD (71545 (UKY™ and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities are described below We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Group in
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to hsted entities. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtaned is a sufficient and appropriate basis for cur opinion.

Overview

Materiallty:
Group financial statements as a whole

£1.0 million (2019:£1.0 million)
0.33% (2019 O 32%} of revenue

Coverage

100% (2019: 100%) of revenue

Key audit matters vs 2018

Event driven

New: Going Concern

New: IFRS 16 lease arrangements

Recurring risks

Parent Company Investment Valuation
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
to the members of DX (Group) pic

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sigrficance in the audit of the financal
staterments and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatermnent (whether or net due to fraud) identified by us,
ncluding those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing

the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the cantext of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit
opinion above. the key aud't matters, in decreasng order of audit significance, were as follows

Thenzk

Qur resporse

Going concern - the impact Dlsclosure quality:

of uncertainties due to the
global spread of COVID-19

Refer to page 36 cAudit
Commuttee Report). and
page 57 (accounting pahcy).

The financal statements explain how
the Board has formed a judgement
that 1t s appropriate to adopt the
going concern hasis of preparation
for the Group and parent company.

That judgement 15 based on an
evaluation of the inherent risks to
the Group's and Company's business
model ncluding the iImpact of
COVID-19 and how those risks might
affect the Group's and Company’s
financial resources ar ability to
continue operations in the
foreseeable future. As a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic, uncertainty
about the immediate outlook for
many companies has increased
sharply.

The risk mcludes the potertial effect
on customers and cash collections,
the avallabity of debt and other
fimancing arrangements, the impact
on the wider supply chain. and,
ultimately. the potential of adversely
affecting on the Group's and
Company's available financial
resources over this percd.

Our procedures Included:

> Historical comparisons: Evaluating whether the
assumptions are realistic, achievable and consistent
when compared to past performance and other
forecast information used during the audit;

> Our sector experience: Critically assessing the
directors’ going concern assessment. including the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the cash
flow forecasts and the level of downside sensitivities
applhed using ourindustry knowledge of COVID-19 risks;

> Funding assessment: Reviewing the terms and the
adequacy of the Group's iInvoice discounting facility
compared to the Group’s forecasts and confirmed with
the lender that there 1s no Intention to recall the facility,

> Sensitivity analysis: Considering the downside
sensitivities to ensure that these represented severe but
plausible scenarios based on our knowledge of the
business, the associated risk exposure and we
considered the most recent trading results compared to
forecasts; and

> Assessing transparency: Assessing the completeness
and accuracy of the matters covered in the going
concern disclosure, to confirm whether they sufficiently
expiamn the judgements made by the Directors in
assessing whether the going concern basis of
preparation is appropriate.

IFRS 16: Recognition of
lease arrangements on
adoption of IFRS16

Subjective estimate;

There 1s significant estimation

Our procedures Included:

> Benchmarking assumption: Comparing key inputs,

and judament in determining the such as the risk free rate, risk premium and asset specific

(E£80 rmulhon) discount rate used to calculate the rate to external data such as rmarket information, .
right of use asset and the lease > Sensitlvity analysis: Performing a sensitivity analysis by '
Refer to page 36 tAucht habitity Given the materiality of the changing varicus key inputs on the assumptions above;

Assessing transparency: Assessing whether the Group's
disclosures about the key judgments and estimation
uncertainty are reflected in the financial statements

Committee Report). pages
60 and 6] (accounting
policy) and paae 78
(financial chsclosures)

balances being recognised a smali >
change in the inputs will have a

matenal change on the financial
statements
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“her sk Qur resperse

Recoverability of parent Low risk, high value: OQur procedures included:

Company’s Investment In

subsidiaries The carrying amount of the parent > Test of detail: Comparing the carrymg ameunt of
Company’s investments in 100% of investments with the relevant subsicianes’

Parent: £20 million; (2018: subsidiaries represents 94% (2019: draft balance sheet to 1dentify whether their net assets.

£330 mithon) 94%3 of the Cormpany’s total assets, being an approximation of their minimum recoverable
Their recoverability 1s not at a high amount, were in excess of ther carrying amount and

Refer to page 36 (Audit & risk of sign:ficant misstatement or assessing whether those subsidianes have histoncally

Risk Commuttee Report). subject to significant judgement been profit-making

page 59 (accounting policy) However, due to therr materiality in > Assessing subsidiary audits: Assessing the work

and page 68 (hnancial the context of the parent Company performed by the subsidiary audit team on all

chsclosures). financial statements, this s subsidiaries and considering the results of that work,
considered to be the area that had on those subsidiaries’ profits and net assets,

the greatest effect on our overall
parent Company audit.

wWe continue to perform procedures over DX Freight goodwill valuation, however, following improvernent in the rasults of this cash
generating unit and the headroom in the value in use calculation prepared by management we have not assessed this as cne of
the most sigrnificant risks in our current year audit and, therefore it 1s not separately identified sn our report this year,

3 Qur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiahty for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at £1 000,000 (2019: £1,000,000), determined with reference
10 & benchmark of revenues (of which it represents 0 33% (2019 0.32%) We consider total revenue to be the most appropriate
benchmark as loss before tax cannot be used without making significant adjustrments and revenue 1s expected to provide a

more stable measure year on year. Materialty for the parent Company financial staterments as a whole was set at £900000
(2019 £900,000), determined with reference to total assets of which it represents 2 8% (2019: deterrnined with reference to total
assets of which it represents 2 8%)

Wae agreed to report to the Audit Commuttee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstaternents exceeding £50,000
(2019 £S0.000), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Revenue Group Materiality
£329.3 million £10 million
(2019: £322.5 million) (2019 £1.0 million)
£1.0 million
R Wha e financ.a stazements matenatty
ovenue (2019 £1.0 million)
Group materiality £950,000

Range of materiality at 3 components (E950 000 to £350,.000)
(2012 £950.000 to £338.000)

£50,000
Misstaremenls reporied to the aad t comm tlee (2018 £50 000}

Of the Group's 15 (2019.1%) reporting components, we subjected 3 (2019: 3) to full scope audits for group purposes,
The components within the scope of our work accounted for the following percentagas of the Group's results

> Group revenue - 100%

> Group loss before tax - 100%

> Group total assets - 100%

Group revenue Group loss before tax Group total assets

Full scope for Group add L purposes
2020

Fu' scope tor Group aud T purpases
2019

SIUIUIIEIS [EOURU)Y
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
to the members of DX (Group) plc

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit continued

The Group audit team approved the following component materialities, having regard to the mix of size and nsk profile of the
Group across the components

> DX Group (parent Company) - £900,000 (2019 £200,000)

> DX Network Services - £950.000 (20189 £950,000)

> DX Network Services Ireland - £350,.000 (2019: £359,000)

The components not subject to full scope audits contained only balances that eliminated on consolidation or balances not
matenal to the financial statements. 1he parent Cormpany wds authled separately to the matenabty level noted above The work
on the 2 reporting components (2019: 2) and the audit of the parent Company was performed by the Group team

4 We have nothing to report on going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to iguidate the Company
or the Group or to cease therr opearations, and as they have concluded that the Company's and the Group’s financial position
means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no matenal uncertainties that could have cast significant
doubt aver their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial staterments
('the going concern period’)

Our responsibility 1$ to conclude on the approprnateness of the Directors’ conclusions and. had there been a materal uncertainty
related to going concern, to make reference to that in this audit report However. as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may result In outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the
bime they were made. the absence of reference to a matenal uncertainty in this auditor's report 1s not a guarantee that the Group
and the Cormpany will continue 1In operaticn.

Wwe identified going concern as a key audit matter (see section 2 of this repgort) Based on the work described in our response to
that key audit matter, we are required to report to vou If we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting
s inappropriate or there 1s an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a
period of at least & vear from the date of approval of the financial statements

We have nothing to report in these respects

5 We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial statements.
Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our respons Dbty 15 1o read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work,
theinformation theremn is materially masstated or inconsistent with the financal statements or our audit knowledge Based solely
on that work we have not identified rmatenal misstatements in the other information

Strategic report and directors’ report

Based solely on our work on the other information:

> we have not igentified material risstatements in the strategic report and the directors report;

> N our opinion the information given in thase reports for the financial year 1s consistent with the financial statements; and
> N our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Comparnies Act 2006,

6 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to yvou if, in our opinion:

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

> the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disciosuraes of directors” remuneration specfied by law are not made; or

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

v

We have nothing to report in these respocts
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7 Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explamed more fully in their statement set out on page 44, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
staternents including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine 15 necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Group and parent Company’'s ability to continue as a go:ng concern, disclosing, as appbcable. matters related to gaing concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent Company or to
cease operations. or have no realistic alternat.ve but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur objectives are to obtamn reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatermnent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reascnable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but dees not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement
when it exists Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are constderad matenial if, iIndividually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities s provided an the FRC's website at www fre.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

8 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body. for our audit waork, for this report. or
for the opinions we have formed.

James Ledward

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

2 Forbury Place

23 Forbury Road

Reading

RG1 3AD

17 September 2020

DX (Group) ptc Arnua Report and Accounis 2020 49

5]USIIL)S [ePUeU|d



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period ended 27 June 2020

Peried ended' Vear erded
27 June 2020 30 Jore 2009
Total Taral
“Notss £m Em
Revenue 5 329.3 3225
Operating costs 7 (326.3) (323 8)
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 3.0 (13
Analysis of profit/(loss) from operating activities
Earnings before interest. tax, depreciaticn and amortisation (EBITDA') 249 33
Depreciation (20.0) 22
Amortisation of software and development costs (0.4) (0.9}
Amortisation of acquired intanagibles (0.3) (0.3}
Share-based payments charge .2) (1.2)
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 3.0 GRS
Finance costs 10 4.3) (0.4)
Loss before tax (1.3 Qa7
Tax expense i (0.5) 08
Loss for the year 1.8) (2.9)
Other comprehensive expense not subsequently reclassified
Other cormnprehensive expense - -
Total comprehensive expense for the vear (1.8) (2.5
(Loss)/earnings per share (pence):
Basic (and diluted) 2] (0.3) 04
Adjusted 0.1 (0.2)

1 FRS 16 was edopted or 1 July 2019 using the modiflied cetrosooclive aopreacn. witnout restating prior year figures nformatior or the impact of adopting

FRS 1615 oresented in note 34 to tne consolidated financial staterorts

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 27 June 2020

27 June 2020"

£0 June Z019

hoe £m Em
MNon-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 13 10.4 9.7
Right-of-use assets 16 80.2 -
Intanagible assets and goodwill 14 3.0 310
Deferred tax assets 24 2.3 23
Total non-current assets 123.9 430
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 335 431
Current tax receivable 0.1 o1
Cash and cash equivalents 18 12.3 1.8
Total current assets 45.9 450
Total assets 169.8 880
Equity
Share capital 19 5.7 57
Share prermium 20 25.2 252
Translation reserve 20 - -
Retained earnings 20 (7.9) (73)
Total equity 23.0 236
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 23 5.0 50
Lease habilities 25 68.3 -
Total non-current habilities 73.3 50
Current liabilities
Current tax payable - -
Loans and horrowings 22 - 31
Trade and other payables 26 42.0 381
Lease llabihties 25 15.8 -
Deferred income 26 14.2 17.2
Provisions 23 1.5 1.0
Total current liabilities 73.5 59 4
Total liabilities 146.8 64.4
Total equity and liabilities 169.8 88.0

1 FRS 16 was adopted o0 1 July 2019 using the rrodified retrospective appreacn witnout restating prior year figures -nformation or the irrpact of adoptrg

IFRS 16 15 oreserted In note 34 to tna consclidated firaraial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 September and signed on its behalf by

& oo

Ronald Series
Chairman

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements

Company registered number 08696699

David Mulligan
Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 27 June 2020

27 June 2020’ 30 Lune 2019

Notes £m £
Non-current assets
Investments 15 30.0 300
Total non-current assets 30.0 30.0
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 2,2 18
lotal current assets 2.2 1.8
Total assets 32.2 s
Equity
Share capital 19 5.7 5.7
Share prerniurm 20 25.2 252
Retained earnings 20 1.2 08
Total equity 321 3.7
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 - -
Trade and other payables 26 - -
Total non-current habihbes - -
Current liabilities
Current tax payable - [oN
Trade and other payables 26 0.1 -
Total current llakylities 01 al
Total liabilities 0.1 al
Total equity and liabilities 32.2 .8
1 IFRS 16 was adooted or 1 suly 2019 usirg the modihed retraspective aparoaca without restatirg onior year figures  nfermation on the 1moact of adooting

ERS 6 s proseated 1a nate 34 16 the consahdated hinzraial statemients

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 September 2020 and signed onaits behalf by,

Ronald Series David Mulligan
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

The notes on pages 57 ta 79 form part of these financial statements.

Company registered nurmber 08696699
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the period ended 27 June 2020

Skare Sharo Trarelalize Retamcd
capta prermium reserys Sarrirg Tota
Notes £rm £rn £m £rn £
AT July 2018 57 2572 - [(GRe)) 249
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year - - - (2.5) (25
Other comprehensive expense - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (25) {25)
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Share-based payment transactions - - - 12 1.2
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - - 1.2 12
At 30 June 2019' 5.7 25.2 - (7.3) 23.6
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year 12 - - - a8 .8y
Other comprehensive expense - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - a8 s
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Share-based payment transactions 29 - - - 1.2 1.2
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - - 1.2 1.2
At 27 June 2020 5.7 25.2 - (7.9) 23.0

1 FRS 16 was adooted or T.July 2019 usirg tre madifind rotrospective appeeacr, watnout restatirg onar year figures 'rformation an tre imoact of adooting

FRS 1615 preserted in note 34 to tne consoldated finarcial statements

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period endeda 27 June 2020

Skare Skare Rete neat
capta premam garrirgs Teta
hctes £m £m Fm £m
At T July 2018 57 252 06 315
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year - - [qRe)] .0
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - 10y (1.0)
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Share-based payment transactions - - 1.2 1.2
Tota! transactions with owners of the Company - - 12 1.2
At 30 June 2019’ 5.7 25.2 0.8 31.7
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year 12 ~ - 0.8) (0.8}
Total comprehensive expense for the vear - - 0 8) (0.8)
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Share-based payment transactians 259 - - 1.2 12
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - 1.2 12
At 27 June 2020 5.7 25,2 1.2 32

i FRS5 16 was adooted on T Luly 2019 uzing tne madified retrospecivg gopraach, withoul restatirg aror yedr figures (rfarmrator 0 the mpact of adootirg
IFRS 18 15 presertode rate 3£ 1o tae consohdated fimancial statements

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial staterments
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the period ended 27 June 2020

Period ended' vear erded
27 June 2020 2 Jare 2019
~otes £m £
Cash generated from operations 27 381 351
Interest paid 4.2) (0.4}
Tax (paid)/recewed (0.4) 0.5
Net cash generated from operating activities 335 32
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13 - -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2.7) (2.9
Software and development expenditure (0.6) (05}
MNet cash generated used in investing activities 3.3 (34
Net increase/(decrease) in cash before financing activities 30.2 0 2)
Cash flows from financing activities
Moverment oninvorce discounting facility (3.1) -
Lease repayments (16.6) -
Net cash generated used in financing activities (19.7) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10.5 0 2)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginming of yvear 1.8 2.0
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 12.3 18

1 FRS 16 was adopted on | Luly 2019 using the modified retrospective aoproach. witnout restating onor year hgures Information on the imoact of adooting

FRE 1615 presented 10 rote 34 to the corsalidated firancial statements

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements
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Company Statement of Cash Flows
for the periocd ended 27 June 2020

Notes

Period ended'
27 June 2020
£m

Year ended
3G Jere 2079
£m

Cash (used in)/generated from operations 27

Interest paid
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash before financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

Issue of Loan MNotes (subseguently cancelled and replaced with equity)
Issue of Share Capital

Costs of 1ssue of Share Capital, Loan Notes and refinancing
Repayment of amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18

1 IFRS 16 was adooted or 1 July 2019 using the modified retroscective aporoack without restatirg onior year figures. nlormation on tae impact of adooting

IFRS 16 15 preseted 1n note 34 to tre corschdated finzrcial statements

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial staterments
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period ended 27 June 2020

1 Reporting entity

The principal activity of DX (Group) plc {("the Company ™) and its subsidiaries (together, 'the Group' or ‘DX’ is the provison of
delivery solutions, including parecel, freight, secure, courer and logistics services. The Company i1s incorporated and dormiciled
In the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office 1s: Ditton Park. Riding Court Road, Datchet, Slough 513 9GL

The registered number of the Company 1s 0B696699

2 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consclidated and Company financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union CAdopted IFRSs) The parent Company
financial inforrmation is shown separate to the consolidated financial informatron.,

The consolidated financial staternents were authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 16 September 2020

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial information to conform with IFRSs requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount,
event or actions, actual amounts ultimately may differ from those estimates. Further detalls on judgements and estimates are
disclosed in note 3.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which the Directors consider to be appropriate as they
are confident the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its habilities as they fall due for at least
12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements This is notwithstanding the Group’s net current liabilities of
£276 millien as at 27 June 2020 and a loss for the penod then ended of £1.8 million. Included within the net abilities is £14 2 milhion
(2019, €17 2 milliom) of deferred income representing an abligation to deliver a service but not a cash liability and £15 8 million
representing lease liabilities whose payments are spread over the forthcommg year and not payable In the immediate short-term

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period from the date of approval of these financial statements up to

20 June 2023, comprising a base case and a severe but plausible downside scenario in order to assess how any second wave of
the coronavirus could impact the Group. These indicate that, even taking into account reasonably possible downsides, the Group
will have sufficient funds, through its invoice discounting facility with a rolling three month notice period or similar alternative
sources of finance, to meet its habilities as they fall due for that period. While the invoice discounting facility is cancellable by
either party on a three month notice period, the Directors are confident that it will remain avallable throughout the forecast
period See note 22 for further information on the Group's borrowing facilities.

The base case assumes that the recovery from the coronavirus pandemic 1s complete by the end of the first quarter of the year
ending 30 June 2021 and that the Group achieves the expected levels of new business and averall performance. Within the base
case there are contingencies to allow for a shortfall in the expected level of performance. The severe but plausible downside case
assurmes that the impact of any second wave will be similar to the first in terms of length and severity but a repeat of the
Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme would not be available. The Directors assumed that Group revenue will reduce
by £11 millon and EBITDA by £6 mitlion compared with the budgeted levels of performance in the third guarter of the year It is also
assumed that steps would be taken to protect the Group's financial position, such as deferring capital expenditure, significantly
reducing areas of expenditure, such as use of subcontractors and travel and accommodation costs, and that deferral of payments
are agreed with suppliers as necessary. In both scenarios, the Group has sufficient liguidity and adequate that headroom within
its existing invoice discount facilities ("IDF") and will not need to renegotiate the terms of the IDF. Consequently, the Directors are
confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet labilittes as they fall due for at least 12 months from the
date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements cn a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

3 Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summansed below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the
preceding year unless otherwise stated

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Under Section 408 of the Comparnies Act 2006 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and
loss account,

The Group uses alternative performance measures ("APMs™) to measure performance These APMs have been calculated
consistently on an 1AS 17 bas's to enable comparability from one year to the next and the Directors believe that this informatiaon
isimportant for the shareholders as it allows them to understand the difference between the reported results and the trading
performance excluding certain non-cash charges and items which are not expected to recur The Group presents EBITDA,
adjusted PBT. adjusted (LPS)EPS, underiying operating profit/(loss) and net debt which are further explamed in note 33.

The consolidated financial information s presented in sterling and. unless otherwise stated, has been rounded to the nearest
LG milhon (Em),

Basis of consolidation

The financial information comprises a consolidation of the financial iInformation of DX (Group) plc and all its subsidiares

The financial period ends of all entities in the Group are co-terminous. From 1 July 2019 the Group changed 1ts reporting perniods
from a calendar basis to a '4-5-4 weekly” basis which better reflects its cost base and cperations These financial statements
were prepared for the pericd 1 July 2019 to 27 June 2020 Future years will be for either 52 weeks or occasionally 53 weeks

in order to keep the year-end date as close as possible to 30 June. The Company has opted to apply Section 390 (3) of the
Companies Act 2006 This permits the Company to end its financial year on 27 June 2020 (2019: 30 June 2019) as it 1s not
more than 7 days after or before the end of the year dated 20 June 2020 (2019: 30 June 2019)

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control over the entity, which 1s when it 1s exposed. or has rights, to variable
returns from its mvolvemneant with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated Unrealsed
losses are also eliminated except to the extent they provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred

Segmaent reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker ("the CODM") The CODM. who1s responsible for allocating resocurces and assessing performance of operating segments.
has been identified as the Board of Directors.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the financial iInformation of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
enviranment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial information 1s presented in sterling,
which is the functional and presentation currency of the Cornpany and all of the subsidiaries based in the United Kingdom.

The functional currency of the Group's Insh subsidiary 1s the euro

(b) Transactions and balances

Forewgn currency transactions are translated into the functiona! currency using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of tne
transactions Foregn exchange gans and losses resulbing from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the iIncome statement.
Non-monetary assets and hiabiities that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in fareign currencies that are stated
at fair value are retranslated to the functronal currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
Exchange dfferences ansing from this transiat:ion of foreign operations are reported as an item of other comprehensive Income
and accumulated in the translation reserve
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Revenue
Revenue represents the value of sales, apportioned over the perod to which it relates after excluding trade discounts. value

added tax and similar sales-related taxes,

DX Exchange subscription income, which 1s mvoiced in advance based on an expected level of usage, is deferred and recognised
as revenue over the period of time in which the related performance obligation 1s satisfied Deferred subscription income s included
In the statement of financial position as deferred income within current labilies Additional charges are raised when usage Is
significantly higher than expected

Revenue in respect of all other services (1-Man, 2-Man & Logistics, Secure/Courier and DX Mail) 1s recognised at a pomt in time,
on delivery of the service to which it relates, thus satisfying the respective performance obligation

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equpment are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the onginal
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
Depreciation i1s provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset on a systematic basis:

Land Ml

Freehold buldings 2-2 5%
Leasehold improvements 4-20%
Plant. machinery and other equipment 10-33%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each staternent of financial position date.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwlll represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition, Goodwill on acquisitions of subsicharies 1s included in intangible assets
Goodwll is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated imparrment losses. Impairment 1osses on goadwill
are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwlll is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of iImpairment testing. When there is a change to the composition
of the cash-generating units within the Group, goodwili 1s reallocated within the cash-generating umits affected.

(b) Otherintangible assets
Other Intangible assets are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated amortisation Cost includes the original purchase

price of the asset and the costs attributable to iImplementing the expenditure for its Intended use. Third party and internal
development costs are capitalised when the relevant criternia are met

Amortisation is orovided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset on a systematic basis:

Goodwlll il
Software and development costs 20-33%
Acquired intangibles 20-50%

(¢} Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite Iife, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. —_—
Assets that are subject to amort:sation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may not be recoverable, Anmparrment [oss is recognised in the income statement when the asset’s carrying value

exceeds Its recoverable amount Its recoverable amount s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use

sjudwelels ejpuedly
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

3 Significant accounting policies continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised nitially at fair value and subsequently at amaortised cost. less grovision for impairment

A provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s established using an expected credit loss approach where provision calculations
are based on historic credit losses, This approach 1s applied to all trade and other recevables unless there are specific circumstances
indicating the necessity for a specific provision Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probabihity that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or significant delinquency in payments are considered indicators that a
specific provision I1s required

The carrying amount of the asset s reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 15 recognised in
the iIncome statement within other external charges When a trade receivable is uncollectable. it 1s written off against the allowance
account for trade recevables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating costs in
the income statement.

Other receivables are non-interest-bearing and are recognised initially at fair vatue and subsequently at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks.

Interest paid I1s treated as an operating cash flow

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services which have been acquired in the commercial operations of the
Group. Accounts payable are classified as current habilities If payment is due withuin one year or less If not, they are presented
as non-current habilities,

Trade payables are recognised intially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost: any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemphon value 1s recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method Fair value 1s calculated based on the present value
of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date.

Leases

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ from 1 July 2019, IFRS 16 introduced a single. 'on balance sheet” accounting model for
lessees. As aresult, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets {representing its nght to use the underlying assets) and lease
habilities representing 1ts obligation to make lease payments.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application
1s recognised as an adjustment at 1 July 2019 with no restatement of comparative infarmation Comparative information continues
to be reported under A5 17 and related interpretations. Details of the adoption of IFRS 16 are provided in note 34.

The Group has taken advantage of the amendment to IFRS 16 issued i May 2020, 'COVID-19-Retated Rent Concessions’. The
amendment permits lessees, as a practical expedient, not to assess whether particular rent concessions occurring as a direct
conseguence of the coronavirus pandemic are lease modifications and instead to account for those rent concessions asif they
are not lease modifications. There 15 no material impact on the loss for the period as a result of this amendment

Under IAS 17, leases were classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group All other teases were classified as operating leases For property leases. the land and bullding elements
were treated separately to determine the appropriate lease classification

Assets leased under operating leases were not recorded In the statement of francial position. Renta! payrments were charged
directly ta the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably and it 15 probable that an outflow of ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
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Taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax s recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that

it relates to items recognisaed directly in other comprehensive incorme orin equity In this case the tax 1s also recognised directly
in other comprehensive INCome or In equity

Current taxation

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

by the statermnent of financial position date. Management periodicaily evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respact to
situations In which applicable tax regulation 1s sulbject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropriate on the bas's
of armmounts expected to be paid to the tax authornities

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recagnised using the statement of financial position liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements The following temporary differences
are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or abilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit other than in a business combination; and differences relating to investments In subsidiaries to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset
1s realised or the deferred tax liability 15 settled,

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences and brought-forward
taxable losses can be utihsed, The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current assets
against current habilitres and it I1s the intention to settle these on a net basis

Pension costs

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered funds The amount charged to the iIncome statement in respect of pension
costs and other post-retirement benefits s the cantributions payable for the year Differences between contributions payable for
the year and contributions actually paid are shown as amounts either payable or receivable in the statement of financial position

Share-based payment transactions

The farr value on the grant date of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the penod that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards.

The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense 15 based on the
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date For share-based
payment awards with non-vesting canditions, the fair value on the grant date of the share-based payment is measured to reflect
such conditions and there 1s no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes

Government grants

The Group recognises an unconditional government grant related to payroll costs in the statement of comprehensive Incame
as other operating income within operating costs (sea note 7) when the grant becomes recelvable, Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised in the income statement on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses
are recognised

Exceptional items
From time to time, the Group treats certain items which are considered to be one-off and not representative of the underlying
trading of the Group as exceptional In nature.

The Directors apply jJudgement in assessing the particular iterms, which by virtue of their scale and nature should be classified as
exceptional items. The Directors consider that separate disclosure of these items is relevant to an understanding of the Group's
financial performance

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will. by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The areas involving a higher degree of judgerment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consohdated financial information. are considered to relate to:
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

3 Significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions continued

Critical accounting estimate: Leases

Im determiming the lease habnhty in accordance with IFRS 18, the mcremental borrowing rate was estimated by management using
the risk free rate for differing tenors, adjusted for the Group's risk premium determined with reference to 1ts borrowing rate on
the invoice discounting facility, and an asset specific adjustment relating to asset class There is also judgement when determining
the length of the lease to be used n calculating the value of the right-of-use asset and the lease hiability based on management’s
view as to whether a lease break clause will he exercised or not.

The lease hability at 27 June 2020 was £84 1 million A 1% increase in the discount rate would lead to a reduction in the lease
habihty of £2.5 milhon.

Critical accounting estimate: Provisions

The Group makes provisions to meet the cost of future property and vehicle dilapidations at the end of a lease The Group
orovides for property provisions on a site by s:ite basis due to the unigue nature and location of each site. Provision 1s made for
the best estimate of the expected dilapidations Dilapidations are provided for specific individua! properties and vehicle leases
where the outflow of resources is probable and the amount of the abligation can be reliably estimated

The amount provided for property dilapidations at 27 June 2020 was £3.6 mithon (2019: £3 1 million) and represents management’s
best estimate for amounts that could be payable for leased properties at the end of the lease term. A 10% increase In the estimation
of a property’s dilapidation costs would lead to a £0.4 million increase in the provision as at 27 June 2020

The amount provided for vehicle dilapidations at 27 June 2020 was £1 6m (2019: £nil) and represents management’s best estimate
for amounts that could be payable for leased vehicles at the end of the lease term. The amount has increased In the year after
experiencing anncrease in vehicle dilapidation costs in the period 4 10% increase in the estimation of a vehicles’ repair cost
would lead to a £0 2 milllon increase in the provision as at 27 June 2020

Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial risks market risk (principally interest rate nsk), credit risk and hguidhty risk,
The policy for each of the above rsks 1s described in more detail below.

Market risk

The Group finances its cperations through a mixture of equity capital and invoice discount facihities (“I1DF") The Group's interest
rate nisk arises from its IDF under which lending is 1ssued at variable rates. which therefore expose the Group to cash flow Interest
rate sk As the Group only has short-term borrowings, it 1s able to mimimise its exposure to cash flow interest risk by managing
levels of debt on a dally basis

The Group 1s exposed to a negligible element of foreign exchange nisk, with only a mited nurmber of supplies from abroad and
the majority of sales made in the UK

Credit risk

The Group’s principal current assets are cash deposits. cash and accounts recevable. The credit risk associated with cash s Imited,
The principal credit nsk anses from non-recovery of trade receivables. In order Lo manage credit risk, hmits are set for customers
based on a combination of payment history and third party credit references Credit hirmits are reviewed by the credit controller
on a regular basis in conjunction with debt age:ng and collection history

Liquidity risk
The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient haguidity 1s avallabte to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash
safely and profitably. Short-term flexibility 1s achieved by the use of the IDF

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capita' to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through optimising the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
mciudes the borrowings disclosed in note 22, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
comprising 1ssued capital reserves and retained earnings as d:sclosed in notes 19 and 20 and the statement of changes in eguity
Inarder to maintain or adjust the camtal structure, the Group may 1ssue new shares, raise new borrowings or seil assets to reduce
debt The Group's capital is not restricted
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4 New accounting standards

New accounting standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adoepted IFRS 16 "Leases' from 1 July 2019 IFRS 16 became effective during the year and has had a material impact
on the consclidated financial statements of the Group. The iImpact of adoption of this standard and the key changes to the
accounting policies are disclosed above and in note 34 to the consolidated financial staterments. IFRS 16 removes the distinction
between operating and finance leases The adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in the recognition on the balance sheet of assets and
liabilities relating to leases which are currently baing accounted for as operating leases. In addition. there was an increase In

both finance costs and depreciation, whiist a reduction in other operating costs. A right-of-use asset and a corresponding hability
are recognised for atl leases except for short-terrn leases and leases of low value assels,

New accounting standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Amendments. which have not been

applied in these financial statements. were in issue but are either not yet effective or have not yet been adopted by the EW:

> IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’,

> Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’;

> Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform;

> Amendments to 1AS 1. Presentation of financial statements’, and 1AS 8 ‘Accounting pohcies, changes in sccounting estimates
and errors’ - Defimtion of material; and

> Amendments to the Conceptuat framework

5 Revenue
in the following table, revenue Is disaggregated by service The table also includes a reconciiation of the disaggregated revenue
with the Group's reportable segrments (see note B}

2020 2019
£m £
DX Express:
- Secure Courler 121 n3 o
- Exchange (including mail} 48.2 509
Total DX Express 160.3 1639
DX Freight:
- 1-Man Nnz.4 98.6
- 2-Man & Logistics 56.6 60.0
Total DX Freight 169.0 158 6
Total revenue 3293 3225

Revenue /5 recognised at a poimnt in time for all services with the exception of DX Exchange which 1s recogrised over time
Further details are given in note 3

Revenue-retated assets are shown in note 17 as trade receivables and accrued income Deferred income shown on the statement

of financral position is the only respective habihity and wilt be recognised as revenue within 12 months Accrued income represents
amounts for which the performance obligations have been satisfied but not billed at the reporting date

6 Segment information

2020
DX DX
Express Freight Central Total
(Prepared Lnder IFRS16) £m Em £m £m
Revenue 160.3 169.0 - 329.3
Costs before overheads (124.6) {150.3) - (274.9)
mn
Profit before overheads 35.7 18.7 - 54.4 H
Overheads (7.4) (4.9) (17.2) (29.5) ?_.
EBITDA 28.3 13.8 a7.2) 249 ¢
Depreciation and amortisation - - (20.7) (20.7) %
Share-based payments charge - - 1.2) (1.2 g
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 28.3 13.8 (39.1) 3.0 E-
Finance costs - - (4.3) (4.3)
Profit/(loss) before tax 28.3 13.8 (43.4) (1.3)
Tax expense - - (0.5) {0.5)
Profit/(loss) for the year 28.3 13.8 43.9) (1.8) ———
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

6 Segment information continued

2013
1% DX

Expross Fremght Central Tota
(Prepared under |45 173 £m £m £m £
Revenue 1639 158.6 - 2225
Costs before overheads (129.5) ae17) - (291.2)
Profit/(loss) before overheads 34.4 (30 - 3.3
Nverhparls (7% 473 (15.8) (28 0)
EBITDA 26.9 (7.8) s 8 33
Depreciation and amortisation - - (3.4) (3.4)
Share-based payvments charge - - (1.2) 1.2y
Protit/(loss) from operating activities 26.9 (78) (20.4) (32
Finance casts - - (0.4 (Q.4)
Profit/(loss) before tax 269 (7.8) (208) (.73
Tax expense - - (0.8) (0 8)
Profit/(loss) for the year 264 (7.8) (21.6) 25

The Board of Directors 1s considered to be the chief operating decision-maker {"the CODM"). The CODM considers there to be
two separate reporting segments, DX Express and DX Freight. The profitabibty of these two divisions is reviewed and managed
separately with the exception of certain overheads which are integrated across the two divisions. EBITDA of the two divisions is
shown above before any allocation of these central overheads between DX Express and DX Freight. Central overheads comprise
costs relating to finance, legal, personnel. property. Internal audit, 1T, procurement and administrative activities which cannot be

specifically allocated to an individual division.

The CODM considers that assets and habilities are reviewed on a Group basis therefore no segment infarmation s provided for

these balances.

The CODM considers there to be only one matenal geographical segrnent, being the British Isles

The segrmental information on 1AS 17 basis for the perod ended 27 June 2020 15 shown in the Financial Review on page 22 to

aid comparability.

7 Operating Costs

2020 Pyt

£m £m

Other external charges 205.2 2007
Employee benefit expense (see note 9) 102.5 95 0
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and night-of-use assets 20.1 2.2
Amortisation of Intangible assets 0.6 12
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1 -
Operating lease rentals 0.9 24.7
Other operating income (3.1) -
Total operating costs 326.3 3238

Other external charges represent operating costs wh.ch inciude subcantractor charges costs of temporary labour, vehicle operating

costs, short-term hire of temporary vehicles. and property operating costs

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grants of £31 mition (2019: £nil) are included in 'other operating income’ above There are no

unfulfiled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants
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Amounts charged by the Group's auditor are as follows:

2020 2019
£000 ECOO
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 140 95
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services to the Group
The audit of the Company’s subsicharies pursuant to fegistation 20 80
Total audit fees 230 175
Other services.
- tax services 45 44
- octher - -
Total non-audit fees 45 44
Total fees 275 219

Fees payable to KPMG LLPF and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are disclosed on a cansolidated basis and
therefore na separate disclosure for DX (Group) plc on anindividual basis 1s reguired.

8 Directors’ emoluments
Total remuneration

2020 2019

£000 000
Emoluments 903 959
Amounts accrued under money purchase pension schemes

2020 2014

£000 £C0o0
Pension benefits 20 24
Highest paid Director

2020 2019

£QDO FCOO
Emolurnents 316 322

See the Directors' Rermuneration Report sections titled Total Single Figure of Remuneration for Directors and Share Plans

{which form part of these financial statements), and note 32 for further details of Directors’ emoluments, iIncluding transactions

with Directors

9 Employees
Employee benefit expense
2020 2012
£m £m
Wages and salaries 91.3 84 8
Social security costs 7.7 7.2
Other pension costs 2.3 1.8
Share-based payment transactions 1.2 12
102.5 95.0
Average number of persons employed (including Executive Directors)
2020 2019
Number Numiber
3,795 2.5
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

10 Finance costs

2020 2013
£m £m

Finance costs
Interest on bank loans and ather 0.3 Q.3
Amortisation of financing costs 0.1 al
Interest onlease hatyhities 3.9 -
Total finance costs 4.3 04
N Tax credit/(expense)
(a) Analysis of charge in year

2020 2019

£m £m

Current tax
Umted Kingdom corporation tax
Current year - _
Adjustments in respect of prior perods 0. 01
Total United Kingdom corporation tax 0.1 a1l
Overseas taxation (0.6} (06}
Total current tax (0.5) (0.5)
Deferred tax
Current year (0.3) (G 4)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.3 [N
Changes In tax rates - -
Total deferred tax 0.0 © 3
Total tax (0.5) 0.8

(b) Factors affecting the tax expense for year
The tax expense for the year differs from the expected amount that would arise using the weighted average rate of corporation
tax in the UK for each year The differences are explained below:

2020 FISL)
£m £m
Loss before tax (1.3) (17
Loss before tax at the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2019 19%) 0.2 0.3
Factors affecting charge for year:
- UK taxable losses carned farward (1.1) (1
- Adjustrments in respect of prior years 0.1 02
- Effect of different tax rates 0.3 0.2
- Other - (R
Tax expense (0.5) (C 8}

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The mam UK Corporation tax rate remained at 19% (2019, 19%) The previously enacted reduction in the rate from 19% to 17% as
from 1 Apri! 2020 was reversed and the 19% was substantvely enacted on 17 March 2020.

12 Loss attributable to the Company

The loss for the year includes a loss of £0.8 million (2019: £1 0 million loss) attributable to the Cormpany after a share-based
payments charge of £1 2 mition (2019: £1.2 million)
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Freehs
ard ard L=asehald Piant ard
Loaldrgs Mprovemer:s equipmenl s
£m +m Em £rm
Cost
At July 2018 55 8.8 206 4.9
Additions - 1.6 14 3.0
Disposals - - _ ,
At 30 June 2019 55 10.4 220 379
AL July 2019 55 104 220 579
Additions - 12 t6 2.8
Disposals (0.5) (07 32 (4.4)
At 27 June 2020 5.0 10.9 20.4 36.3
Depreciation
AL July 2018 27 4.4 8.9 260
Charge for the year Q. 0.8 1.3 2.2
Dispasals - - - -
At 30 June 2019 2.8 5.2 202 28.2
AL July 2019 2.8 52 20.2 28.2
Charge for the year 0.1 0% 08 1.8
Disposals 0 4) (0 (32) 41
At 27 June 2020 2.5 5.6 17.8 25.9
Net book value
At 27 June 2020 2.5 53 2.6 10.4
AL 30 June 2019 2.7 52 1.8 9.7
The cost of land not being depreciated is £0.6 million (2019 £0 6 milhion).
14 Intangible assets and goodwill
Acqured intargibles
Sofiware and
deve'opmert Customeor  Trademarks and Ouistardng
Goadwmll COLTS retat anships dormar nameas arders Tota
£m £ £m Em £rm £m
Cost
AT July 2018 1915 222 N 1.0 0.4 2242
Additions - 0.5 - - - a5
Disposals - (o)} - aom (0.4) 5
At 30 June 2019 1215 226 a1 - - 22372
ALT July 2019 1915 226 91 - - 2232
Additions .6 - - - 06
Disposals - (7.5} - - - (175)
At 27 June 2020 191.5 5.7 a1 - - 2086.3
Amortisation
At 1 July 2018 1615 211 85 1.0 04 1925
Charge for the year - 09 a3 - - 17
IrMmparment - - - - - -
Disposals - on - 1.0 (0.4} (1.5)
At 30 June 2019 1615 2t 9 88 - - 192.2
AL July 2019 161.5 219 88 - - 1922
Charge for the year - 04 G2 - - 06
Imparment - - - - - -
Disposals - (17.5) - - - 17.5)
At 27 June 2020 161.5 4.8 9.0 - - 175.3
Net book value
At 27 June 2020 30.0 09 041 - - 31.0
At 30 June 2019 300 o7 03 - - 310
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

14 Intangible assets and goodwill continued

Management has identfied two cash-generating units within the Group, DX Express and DX Freight. Goodwill has an indefimte
useful life and each cash-generating unit 1s subject to annual impairment testing The £30.0 milion (2019: £30.¢ million)
recoverable amount of the goodwill in the Group has been calculated with reference to its value in use, The carrying value of
goodwil] at the pericd end was £20 million for DX Express (2019 F20 mithorn) and E10 rmullion for DX Freight (2019: £10 rmillion).
The key assumphions used in this calculation are shown below (the assumptons are consistent acress all cash-generating units)

2020 2019
Imparment charge recognised £nil Frul
Penod an which management approved forecasts are based Three years Three years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 20%
Maximum discount rate 1M.83% 12 0%

The cash flow projections are based on the budget approved by the Board for the forthcorming financial year and subseguent
three years, Cash flows beyond these 48 months are extrapolated with reference to historical trends. expected developments,
and using forecasts for the estimated growth rates, not exceeding the long term growth rate stated abave.

Forecasts assume that there 1s a continued dechne in the DX Exchange market and the loss of the HMPO contract in January
2020 byt this 1s mitigated by growth in parcel volumes for Secure Courner The overall revenue growth for DX Express in the
near-term is forecast to be 4% The ongong improving performance of the DX Freight division, which assurnes a short-term
growth rate of revenue of 11% as well as margin expansion In the longer term the Dhrectors consider that the appropriate growth
rate to use 1s that issued by the Institute for Fiscal Studies for the UK economy as a whole, There 1s substantial headrcom in

the value in use calculations: a 10% change In the growth rate or the discount rate would not result in any iImpairment. The key
judgement 1s the short-term growth rate over the next four years, in which a 46% decrease in projected revenue growth would
result in an imparrment to the goodwill

15 Investments

Shares r Groop _tahs £ Group

compar es CoMEal &% “atal
Company 3l Em £m
Cost
AL 1 July 2018 Q1 2167 216.8
Additions 300 - 30.0
Disposals - (30 O} (30.0)
At 30 June 2019 301 186 /7 2168
AT July 2019 3 1867 216.8
Additions - _ _
Disposals - - -
At 27 June 2020 3041 186.7 216.8
Provisions
AL 1 July 2018 [OA 1867 186 8
Impairment - - -
At 30 June 2019 Ol 186.7 186.8
AT Jdly 2019 ot 186 7 186.8
Impairment - - -
At 27 June 2020 0.1 186.7 186.8
Net book value
At 27 June 2020 30.0 - 30.0
At 30 June 2019 30.0 - 30.0

The carrying value of £30 O million (2019 £30 0 milion) of investments and loans to Group companies has been reviewed with
reference to 1ts value in use, applying the same assumptions used for the value in use of the Group's goodwill shown in note 14

In the prior year the company structure of the Group was rearranged The Company acquired DX Services Limited from

DX Holdings Lirmited for £30 0 million. a vertical transfer within the Group structure This represented the carrying value of the
Investmant and as such the Company appled book value accounting under 1AS 27 for the acguisition The acguisition was settled
via Intra-Group balances resuting in the repayment of £30.0 million of loans due from Group compan es
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At 27 June 2020, DX (Group) plc owned, directly or indirectly, 100% of each class of 1ssued shares of the following companies
Al directly and indirectly owned companies form part of the consolidated results.

ST ity

Directly owned:
DX (VCP) Limited (*)
DX Services Limited (%)

Intermediate holding company
Intermechate holding cormpany

Indirectly owned:
DX Network Services Limited

DX Network Services Ireland Limited (registered and operates in the Republic of Ireland)

DX Hold'ngs Limited ()

DX Secure Marl Limited (%)

DX McBride Limited (%)
Ewenny Limited (%)

QvJ Limited ()

DX (EBT Trustees) Limited

DX Business Direct Limited

DX Electronic Services Limited
Special Mail Services Limited

Parcel freight and mar services

Parcel freight and mal services

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

The above companies are registered and operate in England and Wales unless otherwise stated

The registered office of all of the above companies is the same as that of the Company, with the exception of DX Network
Services lreland Limited which has a registered office of Unit 6B, Northern Cross Business Park, Finglas, Dublin 1.

DX (Group) plc has provided the necessary guarantees under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 entitling the subsidiaries
indicated in the above table by '(*) to an audit exemption for the period ended 27 June 2020,

16 Right-of-use assets

Property ~Non property inral
Fm £m £m
Recognised on transition to 1IFR5 16 569 231 80.0
Additions 34 123 157
Lease extensions 28 - 28
Depreciation (9.0} (86} (18.2)
Impairment of assets - - -
Disposals (on - 0N
Net book value as at 27 June 2020 53.4 26.8 80.2
17 Trade and other receivables
Croup Campany
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m Em
Trade receivables 21.9 254 - -
Cther receivables 1.0 07 - -
Prepayrents 36 102 - -
Accrued income 7.0 68 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 2.2 18
335 431 2.2 18
DX (Group) ple Annua' Roport and Accounts 2020 69

SIUDINBIRIS [RIPURUYY



Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period endea 27 June 2020

17 Trade and other receivables continued
Trade receivables are shaown net of a provision for imparment losses of £0 5 milhon (2019: £0 € million). The movement in the
allowance for impairment [osses was as follows.

2020 2019

£Em Em

At 1 July 0.6 05
Impairment losses recognised 0.1 0.3
Amounts written off as irrecoverahle (0.2) (22
At 27 June 0.5 06

Impairment losses are recorded aganst trade recelvables unless its considered that no recovery of the amount owing is possible;
at that point the amounts considered srrecoverable are written off against the trade recevables directly.

The ageing of trade receivables at the statement of financial position date net of the provision for impairment losses was as follows:

2020 2512
£m Frr
Current 20.2 239
Past due 1-30 days c.9 11
Past due 31-90 days 0.7 0.2
Past due more than 30 days 0.1 0.2
21.9 25.4
18 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2020 219 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 12.3 18 - -
19 Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Numiber
Croup and Compary {DCG) £000
COrdinary Shares of £0.01 each 573682 5737

There was no change to the Group's share capital during the year so the numbers above are for the year ended 30 June 2019 and
perwod ended 27 June 2020,
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20 Share premium and reserves

Share Translatior Retared

eremilem Feseryes edarm.rgs

Groop £m £ £
At T July 2018 252 - (6.0)
Loss for the year - - 2.5
Share-based payment transactions - - 1.2
At 30 June 2019 252 - (7.3)
At T July 2019 25.2 - (7.3)
Loss for the year - - 18y
Share-based payment transactions - - 12
At 27 June 2020 25.2 - (7.9)
Shars Reta red

prem um earnings

Company £ £
At T July 2018 252 o6
Loss for the year - [4K9)]
Share-based payment transactions - 12
At 30 June 2019 252 o8
At July 2019 252 0.8
Loss for the year - 10.8)
Share-based payment transactions - 1.2
At 27 June 2020 25.2 1.2

21 Earnings per share
The calculation of basic loss per share at 27 June 2020 is based on the loss after tax for the year and the weighted average
number of shares in 1ssue.

Adjusted loss per share s calculated based on the loss after tax, adjusted for certain non-cash charges and other iterns which
are not expected to recur Adjusted (loss)/profit per share represents an alternative performance measure. Further detarls about
the use of alternative performance measures are detailed in notes 3 and 33

Diluted loss per share Is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares In issue, adjusted for any potentially dilutive
share options 1ssued under the Group's share option programmes Where there 15 an adjusted loss for the period, no adjustment
s made for share options issued under the Group's share option programmes as these would reduce the loss per share,

2020 2018
£m £
Loss for the period (1.8} (2.5)
Adjusted for:
- Amuortisation of acquired intangbles 0.3 0.3
- Share-based payments charge 1.2 1.2
Adjusted loss for the period (0.3) [qK®)]
2020 2019
Number Number
(mitlion) (rm lhon)
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares inissue 573.7 573.7
Potentially dilutive share aptions - -
Weighted average number of diluted Ordinary Shares 573.7 5737
2020 2018
p p
Basic loss per share (C.3) (0 4)
Diluted loss per share 0.3) 0.4
Adjusted loss per share (0.M (02)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

21 Earnings per share continued
These following instruments were not included in the calculation of diluted earnimgs per share because to do so wouid have been
anti-dilutive.

2020 2019

Number mNumber

{million) [GlEIn]

Paotentially dilutive share options 0.7 0.7
22 Loans and borrowings

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m £m £m Em

Invorce discounting facility - 31 - -

Total loans and horrowings - 31 - -

The Group's only borrowing is a £20 O milhon invoice discounting facility, The facility 15 a ralling facility with three months’ notice
by either party. The available balance 1s based on 90% of the outstanding trade recevables, adjusted to exclude armounts billed
in advance and old debt. The amount drawn on the invoice discounting facility at 27 June 2020 was £nil (2019: £3.1 million).
Cutstanding borrowings as at 30 June 2019 were repaid in full during the penod ended 27 June 2020.

Amounts due under the invoice discounting faciity are secured by means of a charge over trade recervables and over the general
assets of DX MNetwork Services Limited

23 Provisions

Jroporty Wab ooz
d ac datiar Oher

coets pProvisions Tota

£m fim (¥l

AT Juty 2018 36 - 13 4.9
(Crechted)/charged to iIncome statement Q2 - 17 1.5
Utihsed (0.3) - (0.1 (0.4
At 30 June 2019 3] - 29 60
At July 2019 31 - 28 650
Charged/(credited) to income statement 06 16 on 21
Utilised on - (0.3 (O 4)
Transibon to IFRS 16 - - (.2 2
At 27 June 2020 36 1.6 1.3 6.5
2020 2019

£m £m

Current 1.5 1.0
Mon-current 5.0 5.0
5.5 60

As disclosed in the accounting policies, in determining provisions management usas jucdgement with reference to historical data
and specifically identified factors. to determine the amount and timing of outflows, and thus the provision reguired

Cther provisions include management’s jJudgement of settlement costs for ongoing legal matters. Included within other provisions
as at 30 June 2019 was an amount of £1.2 mullion for onerous lease provision which was reclassified to nght-of-use assets on the
adoption of IFRS 16 on ¥ July 2019 (see note 34)

Fravisions are expected to be utilised over the perod to June 2030
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24 Deferred tax assets

Craup Company

£m £rm

At 1 July 2018 76 -

Credited to the income statement 0.3 -

At 30 June 2019 23 -

At T July 2019 2.3 -

Credited to the income statement - -

At 27 June 2020 2.3 -
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:

Garoup Company

2020 ENIE 2020 2019

£m £ £m £m

Intangible assets (0.1 on - -

Accelerated capital allowances 2.2 272 - -

Other timing differences 0.2 o2 - -

2.3 2.3 - -

The unrecognised deferred tax assets of the Group at 27 June 2020 total £6 2 million {(2G19: £5 7 muillion), consisting of unused

tax losses. There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets for the Company at 27 June 2020 (2019 £nil).

25 Lease liabilities

Leases typically consist of leases for premises, vehicles and equipment such to support operations and to help service the
Group's custormers Leases of land and bulldings are usually subject to rent reviews at specified intervals and prowvide for the

lessees to pay all insurance. maintenance and repair costs

) . . 2020 P =]
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows Em Frm
Less than one year 191 -
One to five years 54.2 -
More than five years 25.0 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 27 June 98.3 -

2020 2019
Em £m
Current
Lease habilities 15.8 -
Non-current
Lease habilities 68.3 -
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 27 June 84.1 -

Detalls of the matunty analysis of discounted habilities recogrusaed in the Group's statement of financial position are in note 28

‘Financial instruments’,
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

25 Lease liabilities continued
The amounts charged to the income statement due to the practical expedients taken are shown below:

2020
Plant and
Property equipment
£m £Em
Expense relating to short-term leases 0.4 0.3
Expense relating to low-value [eases - 0.2
0.4 0.5

26 Trade and other payables, and deferred income

Croup Companry

2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £ £m £m
Trade payables 1.6 174 - -
Social secunty and other taxes 14.5 Gl - -
Cther payables 2.4 1.0 - -
Accruals 13.5 136 - -
42.0 381 - -

Deferred income relates to Document Exchange subsanptions invoices in advance. As at 27 June 2020 the total deferred income
was £14.2 million (2019 £17 2 millon). The change relates to falling revenue from subscnptions and the timings of certain large

invoices around the year end

27 Reconciliation of loss for the year to cash (used in)/generated from operations

Greup Campar.s
2020 2012 2620 2019
£m tm Em £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year 1.8) (2.5) (0.8) {0
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 201 22 - -
- Amortisation of intangible assets 0.6 12 - -
- Net finance costs 4.3 0.4 - -
- Tax expense 0.5 .8 - -
- Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 0. - - -
- Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 1.2 1.2 1.2 12
Net cash profit 25.0 33 0.4 0.2
Changes in:
- Trade and other receivables 8.2 123 (0.4) -
- Trade and other payables 6.3 15 - (0.23
- Deferred income (3.1 (1.6) - -
- Provisions 1.7 "1 - -
Net change in working capital 131 (0.2 (0.4) 0.2
Lash generated from operations 381 31 - -
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28 Financial instruments
Short-term recevables and pavables have been excluded from the following disclosures,

Interest rate profile
The Group has no long-term financial habilities,

Fair values
Financial instruments utilised by the Group during the year ended 30 June 2019 and period ended 27 June 2020, together with
information regarding the methods and assumptions used to calculate farr values. can be summarised as follows:

Current assets and liabilities
Financial instruments included within current assets and labihties (exciuding cash and borrowings) are generally shart-term
nature and accordingly their farr values approximate to therr book values,

Borrowings and cash
The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings approximate to therr farr values because of the short-term matunity of
these instruments

The financial nstruments held by the Group do not, either individually or as a ¢class. create potentially significant exposure to the
market, credit. hquidity or cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is considered to be egual to the carrying values of these items due to their
short-term nature Cash 1s held with counterparties with a Moody's credit rating between baal and baa3

£1.2 milhon (2019: £0.9 million) of net financial assets and liabihties at the statement of financial position date were denominated
in euros All other net financial assets and liabilities were denominated in sterling. A 10% strengthening of sterling against the euro
at 27 June 2020 would have reduced equity and profit by £0.2 mithon €2019: £C 1 rmiflion).

A 1% increase or reduction in the interest rate applicable to the Group's borrowings would have had a £nil (2019: £nil) impact
on the profit for the year

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 1ts
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's recavables from customers and investment securibies.
The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s the amount of the receivables balance,

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group has prepared
detalled cash flow projections. against which it remains ahead of forecasts, and thus the Directors believe that the Group s able
to meet its obligations as they fall due,

29 Employee benefits

Pension commitments

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for ali qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes are in
managed funds and are therefore held separately from the assets of the Group.

The total cost charged to income of £2.2 million (2019 £1.8 milhon) reprasents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Contributions amounting to £0.4 mithon (2019: £0 4 million) were pavable to the schemes at 27 June 2020 and are included
in trade and other payables

Share-based payments
At 27 June 2020 the Group had the following share-based payment arrangements:

Performance Share Plan 2017 (“PSP") and Restricted Share Awards

In the yvear ended 30 June 2018 the Group established two equity-settled share option programmes that entitle key management
to purchase shares in the Group at £0.01 on vested options The programmes consist of Recovery Awards under the PSP as well
as Restricted Share Awards

SIS [RDUBULY

The vesting conditions of the Recovery Awards are share price targets along with continued employment Share price targets of
12.5 pence and of 40 pence result in 25% and 100% respectively of the Recovery Awards to vest, and a pro-rata straight-line basis
between 12.5 pence and 40 pence accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the pericd endec 27 June 2020

29 Employee benefits contirued

Share-based payments continued

Performance Share Plan 2017 (“PSP”) and Restricted Share Awards continued

The share price targets will be tested at each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the making of the Recovery Awards,
and on each occasion the share price measurement 15 1o be based on the 30-day average share price prior to the test date.
Achievement of a share price measurement on a later test date which 1s greater than the achieved measurement on a previcus
test date will result 1in additional vesting of the Recovery Award in accordance with the share price targets

In addition to the share price targets stated above, the Remuneration Committee must be satisfied with overall financial
performance to allow any vesting of Recovery Awards on any occasion. Recovery Awards for which the share price target s
attained at any test date will vest 12 months later (being the fourth, fifth and sixth anniversaries of the award date) provided that
the participant 1s stildl a Director or employee of the Group at that time,

The vesting condition of the Restrncted Share Awards 15 continued service as a Director for three years from the 1ssue date.

Measurement of fair values
The fair values of the PSP are measured using the Monte Carlo basis of valuation Expected volatiity 15 based on the historic
votatibty of the DX Group and the AIM market of the Landon Stock Exchange measured over the contractual period of the options

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date of the eguity-settled share-based payment plans issued in
the current and prior year were as follows:

30 April 28 November 1July Yapn 28 Jar.ary 5 0Ly
<ecovery Awards 2020 2020 2020 2019 ) 2018
Options issues 400,000 950,000 250,000 1,900000 350,000 14,580,063
Fair value at grant 7.3p 73p 7.3p 73D 50p 50p
Share price at grant date 10.0p 1.8p 13.0p 12.3p 90p 95p
Exercise price 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p i.0p 10p
Expected volatilty 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Expected term 2.2 years 2.6 years 2.9 years 3.2 years 3 5 years 39 years
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonas) 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.9% 0.9%

The number and weighted average exercise price of options under the PSP and Restricted Share Awards are as follows:

2020 2012
Weighted Wie ghled
average Number of Gvcragc MNambsr of
exearcise price options CROFOISE BF 28 opt ors
Granted during the year 1.0p 1,600,000 10p  16.830,063
Lapsed/opted out during the year 1.0p (1,350,000) 10p (1450000
Outstanding at the end of the year 1.0p 101,237,963 10p 100,987963

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

The total expense recognised for the year and the total labilities recognised at the end of the year arising from share-based
payments are as follows:

2020 ocig
£m £rm
Tota! employee benefit expense recognised for share-based payments 1.2 12
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30 Commitments
Capital
There was capital expendture contracted but not provided for plant and equipment of £0 1 millien, (2019: £nil).

Operating leases
At the staterment of financial position date the Group had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases:

Croug
719
£rm
Land and bulldings:

Within one year 0o
Between two and five yvears 20.5
After five years 15.4
499

Other operating leases:
Within one year 7.8
Between two and five years 16 0
After five years 16
25.4

Operating leases typically consist of leases for premises. vehicles and equipment such to support operaticns and to help service
the Group's custormers Leases of land and builldings are usually subject to rent reviews at specified intervals and provide for the
lessees to pay all Insurance, mantenance and repair costs, Following the transition to IFRS 16 the operating lease disclosure 15
made as at 30 June 2019

31 Contingencies
There were no contingent liabilities as at 27 June 2020 (2019: £nil).

32 Related parties
The following transactions were carred out with connected parties.

Key management personnel
Key management comprises the Executive Directors, the Non-executive Directors and Statutory Directors of DX Network
Services Lirmvted The key management compensation 1s as follows

2020 2019

£000 £00C

Salaries, fees and other short-term employee henefits 1,594 1,520
Pension contributions 71 79
1,665 1,599

Sales and purchases of goods and services
There were no related party transactions relating to the sales and purchases of goods and services to disclose

33 Alternative performance measures ("APMs”)

The Group uses APMs to measure parformance. These APMs are applied consistently from one year to the next and the Directors
believe that this iInformation is impoertant for the sharehelders as it allows them to understand the difference between the reported
results and the trading performance excluding certain non-cash charges and other items which are not expected to recur Various
measures of performance and profitabiity are industry standard and are used by shareholders and potential investors to compare
performance with industry peers The Group presents EBITDA. adjusted profit or lass before tax ('adjusted PBT/LBT'), adjusted
profit or loss per share Cadjusted EPS/LPS") and underlying operating profit/(loss), which are calculated as the statutory measures
stated before amortisation of acquired intangibles, any exceptional items and share-based payments charge, inclucing related tax
where applicable The Group adjusts for share-based payments due to the one-off nature of the Recovery Awards in driving the
turnaround of the business in the short-term. The Group also presents net debt, calculated as gross debt before debt 1ssue costs and
net of cash. The reconciliations between these APMs and the IFRS reported measures are shown in the locations detailed below:

AFM IFRS reported measure I ogation afreconc’ atan
EBITDA Profit/(loss) from operating activities Financial Review
Adyjusted PBT/LBT Profit or loss before tax Financial Review
Adjusted EPS/LPS Profit or loss per share Note 21
Underlying operating profit/(Joss) Profit/(loss) from operating activities Financial Review
Net cash/net debt Net cash/net debt Financial Review
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the period ended 27 June 2020

34 IFRS 16 adoption

The Group has previously prepared 1ts financial staterments in accordance with 1AS 17 Leases which classified [eases into
operating leases or finance leases, and expensed operating lease rentals within operating costs. 1AS 17 was superseded by
IFRS 16 'Leases which is effective for periods beginming on or after 1 January 2019,

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 from 1 July 2019 IFRS 16 introduced a single, ‘on balance sheet’ accounting mode! for lessees
As aresult, the Group has recognised rnight-of-use assets (representing its right to use the underlying assets) and lease liabilities
representing its obligation to make lease paymeants.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application
1s recagnised as an adustment at 1 July 2019 with no restatement of comparative information, Comparabive information continues
to be reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations

The Group leases many assets. including properties, vehicles and equipment. As a lessee. the Group previously classified leases
as operang or finance leases based on 1ts assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease habihties for most leases

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease Labilities for short-term leases anc leases of low-value assets
The Group continues to recognise the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term,

The Group presents lease habilities in current and non-current labihties 1n the statement of financial position The Group recognises
a nght-of-use asset and a lease hability at the lease commencement date The right-of-use asset 1s imtially measured at cost, and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation (straight-une) and impairment losses, and adjusted for remeasurement
of the lease lability

Lease liability

The lease habiiity 1s imitialty measured at the present value of the future lease payments as at the commencement date, discounted
using the Group's incremental borrowing rate These include future fixed lease rental payments. vanable lgase payments that
depend on anndex or a rate (these are iInitially measured at the index or rate as at the commencement date) and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease earlier, if the conditions reflect the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease

The lease lability 15 subseguently Increased by the interest cost on the lease hability and decreasad by lease payments made.
It1s remeasured when there 15 a lease extension, a change in future lease payments or the Group changes its assessrment of
whether it will exercise an extension or termination option

The Group has appled judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts that include renewal options The
assessment of whether the Group 1s reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly
affects the amount of lease habilities and right-of-use assets recogrised

Transition

Previously, the Group classified property leases and equipment leases as operating leases under |AS 17, Leases are typically
made for fixed periods of time Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on an index which 1s not yet known.

At transition. for leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17, lease habilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted at the Group's incremental barrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 Right-of-use assets are
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepadd or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recogmsed in the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019 On transition the Group's weighted average
incremental borrowing rate was estimated to be 4.5%

The Group used the practical expedients wher applying I"R5 16 to leases prev.ously classified as operating leases under 1AS 17

on alease-by-lease basis:

> Applied a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases with reasorably siri'ar characteristics;

> Relied on its assessment of whether leases ar2 onerous applying !AS 37 ‘Provisions, Cantingent Liabihties ang Contingent
Assets’ as at 30 June 2019 as an alternative to performing an impairment review,

> Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and lahilities for leases with iess than 12 months of lease
term remaining;

> Excluded imtial direct costs from measuring the naght-of-use asser at the date of inma! apphicaton, and

> Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the caontract contains options to extend or terminate the lease
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Impact on transition

Cn transition to IFRS 16, the Group recogrised nght-of-use assets and lease habilities. There was no net impact on retaned
earnings as the nght-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease hability, allowing for prepayments and accruals
The impact on transition 1s summansed below:

1y 2C19
[l
Right-of-use assets 80.0
Lease habihties (82.6)
Prepayments (1.4)
Rent free accrual 28
Onerous lease provision 12
Net impact on retained earnings -
1au'y 2019
£rri
Operating lease commitments disclosed at 30 June 2019 75.3
Difference between non-cancellable lease term and lease term used to calculate the IFRS 16 lability 199
Short-term and small leases excludsd e
Discounted using the lessee’s Incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 2.0
Lease iiability recognised as at 1 July 2019 82.6
Comprising:
Current lease liabilities 58
Non-current lease ligbilities 66.8
Total lease liabilities 82.6
The carrying amount of the right-of-use assets are as below:
27 June 2020 20 sune 2019
IR ghi-of Lse assel £Em £m
Properties 53.4 56.9
Plant equipment and vehicles 26.8 231
Total nght-of-use assets 80.2 800

Impact in the period

As aresult of applying IFRS 16, the Group recognised £80 2 million of nght-of-use assets and £84 1 milhon of lease hiabilities as at
27 June 2020, Also, In relation te those leases under IFRS 16, the Group has recogmsed depreciation and interest costs, instead of
aperating lease expense. During the period ending 27 June 2020, the Group recognised £18.2 milhon of depreciation charges and
£3.9 million of interest costs from these leases

The impact on the profit/(loss) for the period is summarised below:

£m
Profit before tax before IFRS 16 adjustments €0.2)
Add back TAS 1Y rental charge 205
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets 18.2)
interest cost on lease hability (3.9
Net impact on loss for the peried (1.6)
Loss before tax (1.3)
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